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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

M QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 2008

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period from to

Commission file number 0-21656

UNITED COMMUNITY BANKS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaet)

Georgia 58-1807304
(State of Incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
63 Highway 515
Blairsville, Georgia 30512
Address of Principal (Zip Code)

Executive Offices

(706) 781-2265
(Telephone Number)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) las filed all reports required to be filed by Sectin 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the precedinl2 months (or for such shorter period that the rgistrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been &iject to such filing requirements for the past 90 dys.

YESM NOO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is darge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or mon-accelerated filer
or a smaller reporting company. See definitions oflarge accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filerd Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer(d Smaller Reporting Company
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is ashell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)
YESO NOM™M

Common stock, par value $1 per share: 47,596,119asles
outstanding as of September 30, 2008
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Part | — Financial Information
Item 1 — Financial Statements

UNITED COMMUNITY BANKS, INC.
Consolidated Statement of IncoméUnaudited)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
(in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007 2008 2007
Interest revenue:
Loans, including fee $ 93,23t $ 127,21 $ 299,55( $ 361,08
Investment securitie:
Taxable 18,25¢ 16,637 55,76¢ 46,08
Tax exemp 34¢ 42¢ 1,14(C 1,31z
Federal funds sold and deposits in ba 10C 134 372 272
Total interest revenu 111,93¢ 144,41 356,82° 408,75:
Interest expense:
Deposits:
NOW 6,77¢ 12,04¢ 22,58 34,14:
Money marke 2,29¢ 5,00z 7,51¢ 11,08:
Savings 158 558 56C 1,23¢
Time 39,04 42,86 116,75¢ 126,46¢
Total deposit interest expen 48,27 60,46 147,41t 172,92
Federal funds purchased, repurchase agreement
other shorterm borrowings 1,11¢ 4,73¢ 7,25¢ 10,22¢
Federal Home Loan Bank advan: 2,108 5,90 10,66¢ 15,73¢
Long-term debi 2,22 2,10( 6,36¢ 6,50¢
Total interest expens 53,71¢ 73,20 171,70« 205,39¢
Net interest revent 58,22( 71,20¢ 185,12: 203,35!
Provision for loan losse 76,00( 3,70( 99,00( 26,10(
Net interest (loss) revenue after provision fomic
losses (17,780 67,50¢ 86,121 177,25!
Fee revenue:
Service charges and fe 8,171 7,85¢ 23,94: 23,08:
Mortgage loan and other related fi 1,41C 2,11¢ 5,57¢ 6,817
Consulting fee: 1,727 2,381 5,78¢ 6,36¢
Brokerage fee 90t 89t 2,81z 3,031
Securities gains, ni 12C 22t 477 1,81¢
Losses on prepayment of borrowir — — — (1,169
Other 78¢ 2,141 3,83: 6,591
Total fee revenu 13,12 15,61°¢ 42,42 46,551
Total revenue (4,659 83,12 128,54t 223,80t
Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee bene 28,62t 29,69¢ 86,13: 88,037
Communications and equipme 3,90¢ 3,93¢ 11,59: 11,59:
Occupancy 3,90¢ 3,61: 11,32¢ 10,12¢
Advertising and public relatior 1,39¢ 1,53% 4,75¢ 5,651
Postage, printing and suppli 1,49: 1,47¢ 4,53: 4,81¢
Professional fee 1,59¢ 1,92( 5,19¢ 5,40¢
Amortization of intangible: 752 771 2,26¢ 1,96¢
Other 15,29( 5,22¢ 28,45 13,124
Total operating expens 56,97( 48,18: 154,26( 140,72!
(Loss) income before income ta» (61,629 34,94: (25,719 83,08!
Income tax (benefit) expen (21,755 12,40¢ (9,017) 29,28¢

Net (loss) income $ (39879 % 22,53¢ $ (16,70 53,79:




Net (loss) income available to common

shareholder

(Loss) earnings per common she
Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends per common sh
Stock dividends per common shi

Weighted average common shares outstani

Basic
Diluted

$ (39,879 $ 2253; $ (1671H) $ 53,77
$ (84 $ 47 $ (35 $ 1.1¢
(.84) 46 (.35) 1.1€

.0C .09 1€ 27

.09 .0C .0¢ .00

47,30 48,34 47,11 45,45
47,30 48,97 47,11 46,23

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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UNITED COMMUNITY BANKS, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheet

September 3C December 31 September 3C
(in thousands, except share and per share data) 2008 2007 2007
(unaudited) (audited) (unaudited)
ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 126,03. $ 157,54¢ $ 162,71(
Interes-bearing deposits in ban 40,70" 62,07« 75,74¢

Cash and cash equivale 166,74( 219,62: 238,45!
Securities available for sa 1,400,82 1,356,84 1,296,82
Mortgage loans held for sa 17,76: 28,00« 23,717
Loans, net of unearned incot 5,829,93 5,929,26: 5,952,74!

Less allowance for loan loss 111,29¢ 89,42{ 90,93t

Loans, ne 5,718,63! 5,839,84l 5,861,81
Premises and equipment, | 179,72 180,08 174,91
Accrued interest receivab 47,92( 62,82¢ 67,38:
Goodwill and other intangible ass: 322,54 325,30! 326,08(
Other asset 218,38 194,76¢ 191,40!

Total assets $ 8,072,554 $ 8,207,300 $ 8,180,60

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deposits:

Demand $ 680,19t $ 700,94. $ 737,35

NOW 1,393,92 1,474,81! 1,464,95

Money marke 394,35¢ 452,91° 495,09:

Savings 179,27: 186,39: 195,13:

Time:

Less than $100,0C 1,814,92 1,573,60 1,595,51!

Greater than $100,0( 1,481,51. 1,364,76. 1,358,30:

Brokered 745,14 322,51t 307,95:

Total deposit: 6,689,33! 6,075,95 6,154,30!
Federal funds purchased, repurchase agreementetlardshort-terr

borrowings 119,69¢ 638,46 502,08:
Federal Home Loan Bank advan: 285,36: 519,78. 519,38:
Long-term debi 137,99¢ 107,99¢ 107,99¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 23,27 33,20¢ 63,07

Total liabilities 7,255,66: 7,375,401 7,346,83!

Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par value; $10 stated valu®0D)000 shares

authorized; 25,800, 25,800 and 25,800 shares issuekd

outstanding 25¢ 25¢ 25¢
Common stock, $1 par value; 100,000,000 share®anéd;

48,809,301, 48,809,301 and 48,809,301 shares i 48,80¢ 48,80¢ 48,80¢
Common stock issuable; 116,567, 73,250 and 66 Béfes 2,762 2,10¢ 1,954
Capital surplu 457,77¢ 462,88: 462,49¢
Retained earning 317,54 347,39: 347,47¢
Treasury stock; 1,213,182, 1,905,921 and 1,266583%es, at co: (27,029 (43,799 (30,969
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 16,75: 14,26 3,732

Total shareholders equity 816,88( 831,90: 833,76

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 807254 $ 8,207,30: $ 8,180,60!

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statenr
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UNITED COMMUNITY BANKS, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in ShareholderEquity (Unaudited)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30,

Accumulated

Common Other
Preferred  Common Stock Capital Retained Treasury Comprehensive
(in thousands, except share and per share data) Stock Stock Issuable  Surplus Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total
Balance, December 31, 2006 $ 322 $ 42891 % 86z $270,38! $306,26: $ — 8 (3,952 $616,76°
Comprehensive incom:
Net income 53,79: 53,79:
Other comprehensive incornr
Unrealized holding gains on available
for sale securities, net of deferred
expense and reclassification
adjustmen 3,28 3,28:
Unrealized gains on derivative financial
instruments qualifying as cash flow
hedges, net of deferred tax expe 4,402 4,40z
Comprehensive inconr 53,79: 7,684 61,47¢
Retirement of preferred stock (6,400 sha (64) (64)
Cash dividends declared on common stock
($.27 per share (12,567) (12,567)
Common stock issued for acquisitions
(5,691,948 share: 5,692 185,64¢ 191,34:
Exercise of stock options (110,328 sha 78 457 767 1,30z
Common stock issued to Dividend
Reinvestment Plan and employee benefit
plans (123,692 share 11¢€ 3,36( 13¢ 3,617
Amortization of stock option and restricted
stock award: 2,611 2,611
Vesting of restricted stock (30,310 shares
issued, 3,125 shares deferr 30 93 (123 —
Purchases of treasury stock (1,304,775 shi (31,879 (31,87%)
Deferred compensation plan, net, including
dividend equivalent 99¢ 99¢
Tax benefit from options exercis 162 162
Dividends declared on preferred stock ($.45
share) (14) (14)
Balance, September 30, 2007 $ 256 $ 48,80¢ $ 195/ $462,49¢ $347,47¢ $(30,969) $ 3,732 $833,76:
Balance, December 31, 2007 $ 25¢  $ 48,80¢ $ 2,100 $462,88. $347,39: $(43,79¢) $ 14,267 $831,90:
Comprehensive incom
Net loss (16,709 (16,703
Other comprehensive (loss) incon
Unrealized holding losses on available
for sale securities, net of deferred tax
benefit and reclassification
adjustmen (3,009 (3,009)
Unrealized gains on derivative financi
instruments qualifying as cash flov
hedges, net of deferred tax expen:
and reclassification adjustme 5,50( 5,50(
Comprehensive (loss) incor (16,709 2,491 (14,219
Cash dividends declared on common stock
($.18 per share (8,46%) (8,46%)
Stock dividends declared on common stock
(360,155 shares, 1 for 130 shar (4,279 (4,667) 8,90¢ (40)
Exercise of stock options (79,935 shal (927) 1,947 1,02(
Common stock issued to Dividend
Reinvestment Plan and employee benefit
plans (233,276 share (2,689 5,46( 2,771
Amortization of stock options and restricted
stock 2,92¢ 2,92¢
Vesting of restricted stock (15,159 shares
issued, 8,700 shares deferr 264 (62€) 362 —
Deferred compensation plan, net, including
dividend equivalent 512 512
Shares issued from deferred compensation plan
(4,214 shares (119 15 99 —
Tax benefit from options exercis 47€ 47€



Dividends declared on preferred stock ($.45
share) (12 (12
Balance, September 30, 20C $ 256 $ 48,80¢ $ 2,762 $457,77¢ $317,54: $ (27,02 $ 16,75: $816,88(

*  Comprehensive loss for the third quarter of 2008 $23,443,000 and comprehensive income for thd thiarter of 20C
was $38,911,00(

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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UNITED COMMUNITY BANKS, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Cash FlowgJnaudited)

Nine Months Ended

September 30,
(in thousands) 2008 2007
Operating activities, net of effect of business cobmations:
Net (loss) incom (16,70  $ 53,79:
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to resthcprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation, amortization and accret 11,13¢ 10,55:
Provision for loan losse 99,00( 26,10(
Stock based compensati 2,92¢ 2,611
Gain on sale of securities available for ¢ (477 (1,819
Loss (gain) on sale of other ass 16 (20¢)
Loss (gain) on sale of other real es! 10,39: (412)
Loss on prepayment of borrowin — 1,164
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Other assets and accrued interest recei\ 1,79z (8,737
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 86 (8,469
Mortgage loans held for sg 10,24’ 11,60¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 118,40¢ 86,18¢
Investing activities, net of effect of business cdnmations:
Proceeds from sales of securities available far 84,95¢ 106,70¢
Proceeds from maturities and calls of securitieslable for sale 396,67 248,99:
Purchases of securities available for ¢ (519,42) (484,229
Net increase in loar (58,709 (81,399
Purchase of Bank Owned Life Insurar — (50,000
Proceeds from sales of premises and equip 514 72C
Purchases of premises and equipn (8,960 (26,769
Net cash paid for acquisitiol — (4,34¢)
Proceeds from sale of other real es 51,97( 9,781
Net cash used by investing activitie (52,979 (280,53()
Financing activities, net of effect of business cdnnations:
Net change in deposi 613,38: (186,42)
Net change in federal funds purchased, repurchreements, and other short-term
borrowings (518,769 472,85
Repayments of other borrowin — (5,000
Proceeds from FHLB advanc 400,00( 950,00(
Repayments of FHLB advanc (634,000 (931,169
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated 30,00( —
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 1,02C 1,30z
Proceeds from issuance of common stock for dividemzestment and employee
benefit plans 2,771 3,617
Retirement of preferred stor — (64)
Purchase of treasury sto — (31,875
Cash dividends on common stc (12,719 (11,719
Cash dividends on preferred stc (12 (14)
Net cash (used) provided by financing activitie (118,31) 261,51:
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (52,887 67,17
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 219,62: 171,28«
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 166,74( $ 238,45!

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period ft




Interest $ 173,97¢ $ 203,51¢
Income taxe: 20,12 37,661

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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United Community Banks, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
Note 1 — Accounting Policies

The accounting and financial reporting policiedJsfited Community Banks, Inc. (“Unitedgnd its subsidiaries confo
to accounting principles generally accepted in thdted States of America and general banking irmgluptactices. Th
accompanying interim consolidated financial statetsiehave not been audited. All material interconyp&alances ar
transactions have been eliminated. A more detalstription of United accounting policies is included in the 2007 af
report filed on Form 10-K.

In managemens opinion, all accounting adjustments necessarmgcturately reflect the financial position and resul
operations on the accompanying financial statembat® been made. These adjustments are normaleanding accrua
considered necessary for a fair and accurate pe8®n The results for interim periods are notessarily indicative of resu
for the full year or any other interim periods.

Note 2 — Stock-Based Compensation

United has an equity compensation plan that alléersgrants of incentive stock options, nonqualifisck option:
restricted stock awards (also referred to as “nste¢k stock”awards), stock awards, performance share awardstook
appreciation rights. Options granted under the pamhave an exercise price no less than the faikehvalue of the underlyi
stock at the date of grant. The general terms®fthn include a vesting period (usually four ygargh an exercisable peri
not to exceed ten years. Certain option and réstristock awards provide for accelerated vestitigafe is a change in cont
(as defined in the plan). As of September 30, 2@@®roximately 1,385,000 additional awards couldjtated under the plz
Through September 30, 2008, only incentive stodloop, nonqualified stock options and restrictextiktawards and units h
been granted under the plan.

The following table shows stock option activity the first nine months of 2008.

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average Exercisi Contractual Intrinsic
Options Shares Price Term (Years) Value ($000
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 291255 $ 21.5;
Stock dividend adjustme 25,77( —
Granted 594,75( 13.7¢
Exercisec (87,94) 13.41
Forfeited (53,17Y) 28.5(
Expired (34,370 24.0¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 3,357,59: 20.1C 6.3 $ 99¢
Exercisable at September 30, 2( 2,027,291 $ 18.81 47 $ 95C

The weighted average fair value of stock optiorentgd in the first nine months of 2008 and 2007 $&90 and $8.2
respectively. The fair value of each option grantext estimated on the date of grant using the Biatloles model. Becat
United’s option plan has not been in place long enougiathber sufficient information about exercise paiteto establish :
expected life, United uses the formula providedthy Securities and Exchange Commission in Staffoéinting Bulletir
No. 107 to determine the expected life of optioftse weighted average assumptions used to detetiméntair value of stoc
options are presented in the table below.

Nine Months Ended
September 30

2008 2007
Expected volatility 23.42% 20.00%
Expected dividend yiel 2.62% 1.17%
Expected life (in years 6.2fF 6.27

Risk-free rate 3.44% 4.6(%
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United’s stock trading history began in March of 2002 whirited listed on the Nasdaq National Market. FOO& ant
2007, expected volatility was determined using &liligt historical monthly volatility over the period beging in March of 200
through the end of the last completed year. Congi@rsexpense for stock options was $1,578,000$4n%64,000 for the nit
months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, resplgctivhich was net of deferred tax benefits of $692 and $492,00
respectively. The amount of compensation expensbdth periods was determined based on the fairevaf the options at t
time of grant, multiplied by the number of optiogianted that were expected to vest, which was #meartized, net of ar
applicable tax benefit, over the vesting periode Tdrfeiture rate for options is estimated to bpragimately 3% per year. T
total intrinsic value of options exercised durirtge tnine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2087$@@1,000 ar
$2,163,000, respectively.

The table below presents the activity in restrictgxtk awards for the first nine months of 2008.

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

Restricted Stock Shares Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 84,41 $ 29.2¢
Stock dividend adjustme 66¢ —
Granted 31,09 14.1¢
Vested (23,859 26.9¢
Cancellec (3,000 30.1C¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 89,32( $ 24.3¢

Compensation expense for restricted stock is basdbe fair value of restricted stock awards attitme of grant, which
equal to the value of Unitesicommon stock on the date of grant. The valuestficted stock grants that are expected to v
amortized into expense over the vesting period.tR®mnine months ended September 30, 2008 and 206hensation exper
of $659,000 and $555,000, respectively, was re@eghrelated to restricted stock awards. The tetainsic value of th
restricted stock was $1,184,000 at September 318.20

As of September 30, 2008, there was $7.9 milliomumfecognized compensation cost related to nondestteck option
and restricted stock awards granted under the flaat cost is expected to be recognized over ahMeitaverage period
1.4 years. The aggregate grant date fair valugptibres and restricted stock awards that vestechduhie nine months enc
September 30, 2008, was $3.6 million.

Note 3 — Common Stock Issued / Common Stock Issuabl

United provides a Dividend Reinvestment and Shamectiase Plan (DRIP) to its shareholders. Under DdP,
shareholders of record can voluntarily reinvesbal& portion of their cash dividends into shareboited’s common stock,
well as purchase additional stock through the piéth cash. Uniteds 401(k) retirement plan regularly purchases shaf
United’s common stock directly from United. In additiomitéd has an Employee Stock Purchase Program (BS&PR3llow:
eligible employees to purchase shares of commarksiba 5% discount, with no commission charges.tRe nine montt
ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, United issu8R228 and 123,692 shares, respectively, and inedeaapital b
$2.8 million and $3.6 million, respectively, thrduthese programs.

United offers its common stock as an investmeniooph its deferred compensation plan. The comntonkscomponer
of the deferred compensation plan is accountedaforan equity instrument and is reflected in thesobdated financi:
statements as common stock issuable. At Septenth@088 and 2007, 116,567 and 66,366 shares, tesgdgcwere issuab
under the deferred compensation plan.
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Note 4 — Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation abiz and diluted earnings per share for the threetins and nine montt
ended September 30, 2008 and 2007

(in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
Net income available to common shareholc $ (39879 $  22,53. $ (6,71H $  53,77¢
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 47,304 48,34¢ 47,11 45,45;
Effect of dilutive securitie(@)
Stock options and restricted stc — 56& — 733
Common stock issuable under deferred
compensation pla — 64 — 50
Diluted 47,304 48,97% 47,11: 46,23t
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ (849 % A7 $ (35 % 1.1¢
Diluted $ (89 $ A€ $ (35 % 1.1€

(1) Due to a net loss for the three months and ninetinsoended September 30, 2008, stock options, estristock, ar
common stock issuable are considered-dilutive and thus are not included in this calciolat

Note 5 — Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Viae

On January 1, 2008, United adopted Statement cdni€ial Accounting Standards No. 197air Value Measurements
(“SFAS No. 157").SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a éraark for measuring fair value, and expands discles
about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 apfdiesported balances that are required or perhiticoe measured at fi
value under existing accounting pronouncementQrdaegly, the standard does not require any nemwiue measurements
reported balances.

SFAS No. 157 emphasizes that fair value is a mdriséd measurement, not an ensipecific measurement. Therefore
fair value measurement should be determined baséldecassumptions that market participants wouddimigricing the asset «
liability. As a basis for considering market pagant assumptions in fair value measurements, SNASL57 establishes a fi
value hierarchy that distinguishes between marlatigipant assumptions based on market data oltafrem source:
independent of the reporting entity (observablaiiaghat are classified within Levels 1 and 2 @f tierarchy) and the reportil
entity’s own assumptions about market participastianptions (unobservable inputs classified witrenél 3 of the hierarchy).

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 Valuation is based upon quoted prices djusted) in active markets for identical asset$iailities that Unitec
has the ability to access.

Level 2 Valuation is based upon quoted pricessfiailar assets and liabilities in active markeswell as inputs that a
observable for the asset or liability (other thamtgd prices), such as interest rates, foreign angh rates, ar
yield curves that are observable at commonly quittealvals.

Level 3 Valuation is generated from modbelsed techniques that use at least one signifiaastimption based ¢
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, ethare typically based on an entgydwn assumptions, as there
little, if any, related market activity. In instaegwhere the determination of the fair value meament is base
on inputs from different levels of the fair valuetarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy hirit which the
entire fair value measurement falls is based on Itiegest level input that is significant to the faialue
measurement in its entirety. Unitedassessment of the significance of a particulpotirto the fair valu
measurement in its entirety requires judgment,cmdiders factors specific to the asset or lighilit

The following is a description of valuation methtmiyies used for assets and liabilities recordddiavalue.
Securities Available for Sale

Investment securities available-feale are recorded at fair value on a recurringsbdsir value measurement is ba
upon quoted prices, if available. If quoted priees not available, fair values are measured usidgpendent pricing models



other model-based valuation techniques such agrigeent value of future cash flows, adjusted fer shcuritys credi
rating, prepayment assumptions and other factark as credit loss assumptions. Level 1 securitielide those traded on
active exchange, such as the New York Stock ExahaddS. Treasury securities that are traded byedealr brokers in acti
over-the-counter markets and money market fundgelL2 securities include mortgadpacked securities issued by governr
sponsored entities, municipal bonds and corporalte securities. Securities classified as LevelcBuitte assebacked securitit

in less liquid markets.
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Deferred Compensation Plan Assets and Liabilities

Included in other assets in the consolidated balaheet are assets related to employee deferrepecsation plans. Tt
assets associated with these plans are investadtunal funds and classified as Level 1. Deferreshpensation liabilities, als
classified as Level 1, are carried at the fair gadfi the obligation to the employee, which mirrtive fair value of the investe
assets and is included in other liabilities in tbasolidated balance sheet.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower ot oosnarket value. The fair value of loans held date is based on wh
secondary markets are currently offering for pdidowith similar characteristics. As such, Unitgdssifies loans subjected
nonrecurring fair value adjustments as Level 2.

Loans

United does not record loans at fair value on angny basis. However, from time to time, a loarcdmsidered impaire
and an allowance for loan losses is establishedng& dor which it is probable that payment of ing¢r@nd principal will not b
made in accordance with the contractual terms efltlan agreement are considered impaired. Oncaraifidentified a
individually impaired, management measures impaitmi@ accordance with SFAS 11#ccounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan , (SFAS 114). The fair value of impaired loans stireated using one of several methods, inclu
collateral value, market value of similar debt,egptise value, liquidation value and discountechcews. Those impaire
loans not requiring an allowance represent loansvfuch the fair value of the expected repaymemtsadlateral exceed tt
recorded investments in such loans. At Septembe?@lB, substantially all of the total impairedrieavere evaluated based
the fair value of the collateral. In accordancenvBFAS 157, impaired loans where an allowancetabéshed based on the fi
value of collateral require classification in ttaérfvalue hierarchy. When the fair value of thdatelral is based on an observa
market price or a current appraised value, Uniezibrds the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level BelVan appraised value
not available or management determines the faurevaf the collateral is further impaired below #ppraised value and there
no observable market price, United records the irmddoan as nonrecurring Level 3.

Foreclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value uposfer of the loans to foreclosed assets. Suba#éiyutoreclosed asse
are carried at the lower of carrying value or fatue. Fair value is based upon independent markets, appraised values
the collateral or managemestéstimation of the value of the collateral. Whie fair value of the collateral is based on
observable market price or a current appraisedeyadlinited records the foreclosed asset as noniegutevel 2. When a
appraised value is not available or managementrdates the fair value of the collateral is furtirpaired below the apprais:
value and there is no observable market price ddmiécords the foreclosed asset as nonrecurringl Bev

Gooduwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and identified intangible assets are sobj® impairment testing. Unitesl’approach to testing goodwill f
impairment is to compare the business snifirrying value to the implied fair value basedhuiitiples of earnings and tangit
book value for recently completed merger transastidn the event the fair value is determined tddss than the carryir
value, the asset is recorded at fair value as mé@ted by the valuation model. As such, United dfeessgoodwill and othe
intangible assets subjected to nonrecurring fdirevadjustments as Level 3.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Currently, United uses interest rate swaps andasteate floors to manage its interest rate ridie valuation of thes
instruments is determined using widely acceptedat&n techniques including discounted cash flowlysis on the expecte
cash flows of each derivative. This analysis refléehe contractual terms of the derivatives, inicigdhe period to maturity, ar
uses observable markiesed inputs, including interest rate curves argliéd volatilities. The fair values of interesteawap:
are determined using the market standard methodalbgetting the discounted future fixed cash rpteand the discountt
expected variable cash payments. The variable pagments are based on an expectation of futureestteates (forwar
curves) derived from observable market interest catves.

The fair values of interest rate options are deienh using the market standard methodology of disting the future
expected cash receipts that would occur if variattkrest rates fell below the strike rate of tloefs. The variable interest rai
used in the calculation of projected receipts om flbor are based on an expectation of future ésterates derived frol
observable market interest rate curves and valasli To comply with the provisions of SFAS No. 1%Jited incorporate
credit valuation adjustments to appropriately wflboth its own nonperformance risk and the respectounterpartys
nonperformance risk in the fair value measurementsadjusting the fair value of its derivative cauts for the effect ¢
nonperformance risk, United has considered theceffé netting and any applicable credit enhancemesuch as collater
postings, thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees.
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Although United has determined that the majoritytt@ inputsused to value its derivatives fall within Level Rtbe fail
value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustmergsoaiated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 itpusuch as estimates
current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihobdedault by itself and its counterparties. Howews of September 30, 20
United has assessed the significance of the effietiie credit valuation adjustments on the overallation of its derivativ
positions and has determined that the credit vimlnadjustments are not significant to the ovevaluation of its derivative
As a result, United has determined that its deikeavaluations in their entirety are classifiedliavel 2 of the fair valu
hierarchy.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis

The table below presents Unitedassets and liabilities measured at fair valuea aacurring basis as of Septembel
2008, aggregated by the level in the fair valuednghy within which those measurements fall.

(in thousands)

Balance at

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 September 30, 20C
Assets

Securities available for sa $ — $1,400,82 $ —  $ 1,400,82

Deferred compensation plan ass 4,43¢ — — 4,43¢

Derivative financial instrumen — 38,10( — 38,10(
Total $ 443t $1,438,92 $ —  $ 1,443,36
Liabilities

Deferred compensation plan liabili $ 4,43t $ — 8 —  $ 4,43¢
Total liabilities $ 443t 3 —  $ —  $ 4,43t

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &onrecurring Basis

United may be required, from time to time, to meastertain assets at fair value on a nonrecurrasgjshbin accordan
with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principl&sese include assets that are measured at the tdwest or market th
were recognized at fair value below cost at the ehthe period. The table below presents Uniedssets and liabiliti
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basisf &eptember 30, 2008, aggregated by the level eénfdir value hierarct
within which those measurements fall.

(in thousands)

Balance at
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 September 30, 20C
Assets
Loans $ — 8 — $ 58,74 % 58,74
Foreclosed asse — — 33,74¢ 33,74¢t
Total $ —  $ — $ 9248 3 92,48’

Note 6 — Stock Dividend

During the third quarter of 2008, United replacedrégular cash dividend with a stock dividend edta of 1 new share 1
every 130 shares owned. The stock dividend has beftacted in the financial statements as an isseiaf stock with n
proceeds rather than a stock split and therefareiqusly numbers of shares outstanding have not bdpisted. The amount
$40,000 shown in the equity statement as a reduafocapital related to the stock dividend is tmeoant of cash paid
shareholders for fractional shares.

Note 7 — Issuance of Subordinated Debt

On August 29, 2008, United Community Bank, Unitediolly-owned banking subsidiary, issued $30 millior
subordinated debt which qualifies as Tier Il cdpitader RiskBased Capital rules. The unsecured subordinatet] adsbue
interest at three-month LIBOR plus 4.00% and matune August 29, 2015. The subordinated debt isppy@ble at any tin
without penalty.

Note 8 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements



In February 2008, the Financial Accounting StandeéBdard (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSHPAS 1403
Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets and Repurchase Financing Transactions. This statement provides guida
regarding the accounting for a transfer of a finanasset and repurchase financing where the crpartees for bot
transactions are the same. In these circumstanegsjn criteria must be met in order to not ac¢danthe transactions a:
linked transaction. This FSP becomes effectivefimal years and interim periods within those fispears, beginning on
after November 15, 2008. United does not anticiphge this FSP will have a material effect on Udisefinancial positior
results of operations, or disclosures.

10




Table of Contents

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 12plication of FASB Satement No. 157 to FASB Satement No. 13 and
Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or
Measurement under Statement 13 and FSP 157-Fffective Date of FASB Statement No. 157. FSP FAS 157 excludes lease
from the provisions of SFAS No. 157, unless thesde#& valued under a transaction covered by Statewfe Financia
Accounting Standards No. 141(R) (SFAS No. 141). FaB 1572 delays implementation of SFAS No. 157 for nonficial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities measured atfaiue on a nomecurring basis until fiscal years beginning aftewvember 15
2008 and interim periods within those fiscal ye@ecause United does not have any leases whickudnject to fair valu
accounting, and because United already disclosaefinamcial assets measured at fair value on a eamiag basis in th
financial statements, United does not anticipa#e these FSPs will have a material effect on Uhitéihancial position, resul
of operations, or disclosures.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Firelmetcounting Standards No. 161 (SFAS No. 1&i¢closures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. This statement requires an entity to provide enbdmisclosures about how a
why an entity uses derivative instruments, how\ddive instruments and related items are accouftedinder SFAS 13:
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133")and its related interpretations, and how derive
instruments and related hedged items affect atyemfinancial position, financial performance, andlcfiows. This stateme
is intended to enhance the current disclosure fwarie in SFAS 133, by requiring the objectives fasing derivative
instruments be disclosed in terms of underlying @sd accounting designation. This statement besagffective for fisca
years and interim periods beginning within thosargeafter November 15, 2008. As this statemerglated to disclosures onl
United does not anticipate that adoption of thamdard will have a material effect on Unitedinancial position or results
operations.

In September 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff RPositFAS 133-1 (FSP FAS 133-1) and FIN 433sclosures about
Credit Derivatives and Certain Guarantees. An Amendment of FASB Satement No. 133 and FASB Interpretation No. 45 ; and
Clarification of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 161 . This staff position details the proper disclosanel reporting fo
credit derivatives for both the party that assuroeslit risk (seller) and the party that is protdctsy the credit derivativ
(buyer). The disclosures should include the naterey, reasoning, and events and circumstancesvthat require the seller
perform under the derivative contract. This FSEfisctive for reporting periods ending after Novemh5, 2008. United is ni
the buyer or seller on any credit derivatives & time, and thus United does not anticipate tllaption of this staff positio
will have a material effect on United’s financialgition or results of operations.

On October 10, 2008, the FASB issued FASB StafftlbosFAS 157-3 (FSP FAS 157-3)etermining the Fair Value of a
Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active . This staff position addressed concerns amongiah entities
regarding assets trading in markets that were attiome active but have subsequently become inadtmeder FSP FAS 153;
firms must take into account the facts and circamsts to determine whether the known trades innaative market ar
reflective of orderly transactions that are notéat liquidations or distressed sales. If the firakes this determination, they ¢
classify the assets as Level 3 of the fair valleaichy and use an appropriate valuation approelging to an extent o
unobservable inputs, and thus following the appaterdisclosures associated with a recurring L&8vakset. United’ curren:
portfolio does not include any securities for whi€BP FAS 157-3 would apply. Thus, FSP FAS B5%-not expected to have
material effect on United’s financial position, uéis of operations, or disclosures.

Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statememggarding United Community Banks, Inc. (“Unitedijcluding,
without limitation, statements relating to UnitedExpectations with respect to revenue, credielskevels of nonperformir
assets, expenses, earnings and other measuresan€ifil performance. Words such as “may”, “coultiipuld”, “should”,
“believes”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “estimates’intends”, “plans”, “targets’or similar expressions are intended to ider
forward-looking statements. These forwdodking statements are not guarantees of futurapeance and involve certain ris
and uncertainties that are subject to change basedrious factors (many of which are beyond Ungexbntrol). The following
factors, among others, could cause Uniefihancial performance to differ materially frofmetexpectations expressed in s

forward-looking statements:
e our recent operating results may not be indicativieiture operating result
e our business is subject to the success of the émmalomies in which we opera

e our concentration of construction and land develepintoans is subject to unique risks that couldeasily affect ot
earnings

e we may face risks with respect to future expansaioth acquisitions or mergel
e changes in prevailing interest rates may negatiaéfgct our net income and the value of our as:

» if our allowance for loan losses is not sufficiemcover actual loan losses, our earnings wouldedese
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* we may be subject to losses due to fraudulent agligent conduct of our loan customers, third pasgyvice
providers or employee

«  competition from financial institutions and otharencial service providers may adversely affectofitability;

e business increases, productivity gains and othezsiments are lower than expected or do not oceuquickly a
anticipated

e competitive pressures among financial services eurieg increase significantl
»  the success of our business stratt
e the strength of the United States economy in gécbenges

e change in trade, monetary and fiscal policies amgs] including interest rate policies of the Boaf@overnors of th
Federal Reserve Syste

« inflation or market conditions fluctuat

* conditions in the stock market, the public debtketiand other capital markets deterior:
« financial services laws and regulations chal

* technology changes and United fails to adapt tedhluhanges

e consumer spending and saving habits cha

e unanticipated regulatory or judicial proceedingswgand

*  United is unsuccessful at managing the risks irelw the foregoing

Additional information with respect to factors thmay cause actual results to differ materially fridimse contemplated
such forward-lookingstatements may also be included in other repoas tthmited files with the Securities and Exche
Commission. United cautions that the foregoing st factors is not exclusive and not to place undegance o
forward-looking statements. United does not intemdpdate any forward-lookingtatement, whether written or oral, relatin
the matters discussed in this Form 10-Q.

Overview

The following discussion is intended to provideigis into the results of operations and financahdition of United an
its subsidiaries and should be read in conjunatiith the consolidated financial statements and eqEanying notes.

United is a bank holding company registered with Hederal Reserve under the Bank Holding Comparyft956 the
was incorporated under the laws of the state ofr@aan 1987 and commenced operations in 1988. ext&nber 30, 200
United had total consolidated assets of $8.1 hiJlimtal loans of $5.8 billion, total deposits d&.% billion and stockholders’
equity of $816.9 million.

United’s activities are primarily conducted by wholly owned Georgia banking subsidiary (the “Bankhd Brintect
Inc., a consulting firm providing professional Sees to the financial services industry. The Baplerations are conduct
under a community bank model that operates 27 “conityl banks"with local bank presidents and boards in north Giegithe
Atlanta metropolitan statistical area (“MSA"Jhe Gainesville MSA, coastal Georgia, western No@throlina, and ez
Tennessee.

Several significant events affecting the bankindustry occurred during the third quarter of 200&Juding the failure ¢
near failure of several large financial institusoand the failure of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mao, gevernment sponsor
enterprises or GSEs. These events led to seriowenws about the safety and soundness of the fadaservices industry th
affected financial markets around the world. Inpmesse to the emerging crisis, on October 3, 20a)gtess passed ¢
President Bush signed into law tRenergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (The “Act”) which created a $700 billit
Troubled Assets Relief Program (“TARP”) to purchase illiquid assets of troubled banks. Abealso raised the limits on FD
insurance protection from $100,000 to $250,000 ughothe end of 2009. On October 14, the U.S. TryaBepartmer
announced a voluntary capital purchase program wadd allow the U.S. Treasury to purchase seniefgured shares
qualified financial institutions in an amount beemel% and 3% of the financial institutions’ riskigleted assets.

United reported a net operating loss of $39.9 arillfor the third quarter of 2008, compared with oy¢rating income
$22.5 million for the third quarter of 2007. Dildteperating loss per common share was $.84 fothiné quarter of 200:
compared with diluted operating earnings per comsiare of $.46 for the third quarter of 2007. Téslin the third quarter
2008 was due to a $76 million provision for loasdes and $10 million in writedowns and expensefmtlosed properti



that reflect the effect of further deteriorationciredit conditions in United’s loan portfolio.

United reported a net operating loss of $16.7 oillfor the nine months ended September 30, 20G8pared with ne
operating income of $53.8 million for the nine muwnended September 30, 2007. Diluted operatingdessommon share w
$.35 for the nine months ended September 30, 2Gff@pared with diluted operating earnings per comstuare of $1.36 fi
the nine months ended September 30, 2007.
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Earnings decreased primarily as a result of a highavision for loan losses related to the incraasghargeeffs within the
loan portfolio combined with margin compression do&n increase in noperforming assets, competitive deposit pricing
efforts to build liquidity. Housing sales remainlatv levels, leaving a surplus of finished housemg lot inventory in ot
footprint, most notably in the Atlanta MSA. Thisdliee in housing sales negatively affects bothdheh flows of our resident
construction and land development customers, andé¢mand for new land development loans.

Nonperforming assets increased to 2.20% of totsdtasas of September 30, 2008, compared to .7766 Ssptember 3
2007. This increase is a reflection of the dowmstreeffects of declining home sales in the Atlant&8 A which itself i
indicative of the regional economic slowdown thattcurring in much of the Southeast. To date,rigee in nonperformin
assets has been mostly confined to the residergtiadtruction and development portfolio and predamily within the Atlant
MSA.

Fee revenue decreased $2.5 million, or 16%, froenttlird quarter of 2007. Although service charged &éees an
brokerage fees remained near the same level athiltequarter of 2007, mortgage fees and consultees saw declin
reflecting the slow housing market and a declinalémand for consulting services in the banking stiguassociated wi
earnings pressures. Other fee revenue was down drgear ago, primarily due to weak performance flmenk owned lif
insurance assets and deferred compensation plets asshe third quarter of 2008.

Operating expenses increased $8.8 million, or 18%m the third quarter of 2007, primarily due taghér expens:
associated with and writedowns on foreclosed retaite properties and higher FDIC insurance premiums

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of United srexccordance with accounting principles generaltgepted in tt
United States of America (“GAAP’and conform to general practices within the bankmystry. The more critical account
and reporting policies include Unitedaccounting for the allowance for loan losses accbunting for intangible assets.
particular, Uniteds accounting policies related to allowance for lé@sses and intangibles involve the use of estisnata
require significant judgment to be made by manageni@ifferent assumptions in the application ofsthgolicies could resi
in material changes in United’s consolidated finahgosition or consolidated results of operatiddse ‘Asset Quality and Rt
Elements” herein for additional discussion of Udigeaccounting methodologies related to the allasgan

Non-GAAP Performance Measures

The presentation of Unitesl’financial results herein include references teraging performance measures, which
measures of performance determined by methods tdther GAAP. Management included nG®AP performance measu
because it believes they are useful for evaludtlinged’s operations and performance over periods of tien, United use
operating performance measures in managing andiaua Uniteds business and intends to use them in discussioms
United's operations and performance.

Operating performance measures exclude the effecspecial $15 million fraud related provision foan losses record
in the second quarter of 2007 and an additionah#®n provision and $18 million in related chargés in the fourth quart
of 2007 involving lot loans in a failed real estd&velopment near Spruce Pine, North Carolina. Igement believes that 1
circumstances leading to the special provision suigsequent charge-offs were isolated, remuring events and do not refl
overall trends in United’s performance. Managenas believes that these n@AAP performance measures provide use
United's financial information with a meaningful amure for assessing Unitedfinancial results and credit trends
comparing financial results to prior periods.
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A reconciliation of operating earnings measurepmrted earnings measures using GAAP is presdeied:

Table 1 — Operating Earnings to GAAP Earnings Recodiliation
(in thousands, except per share data)

2008 2007 For the Nine Months Endec
Third Second First Fourth Third September 30
Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter  Quarter 2008 2007
Special provision for fraud
related loan losse $ — 3 —  $ — $ 3000 % —  $ — $ 15,00(
Income tax effect of special
provision — — — 1,167 — — 5,83t
After-tax effect of
special provisior $ — % — $ — $183% $ — % — $ 9,16f

Net Income (Loss)

Reconciliation
Operating net income (los $(39,879) $ 7,09 $16,07¢ $ 6,032 $22,53¢ $ (16,709 $ 62,95
After-tax effect of special

provision and merger-

related charge — — — (1,839 — — (9,165
Net income (loss)
(GAAP) $(39,879 $ 7,09 $16,07¢ $ 4,201 $2253¢ $ (16,709 $ 53,79.

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per

Share Reconciliation
Basic operating earnings

(loss) per shar $ (84 ¢ A8 $ 34 $ 183 ¢ 47 % (.35) $ 1.3¢
Per share effect of special

provision and merger-

related charge — — — (.04) — — (.20
Basic earnings (loss) pe
share (GAAP, $ (84 ¢ A8 $ 34 $ 08 $ 47 8 (.35) $ 1.1€

Diluted Earnings (Loss)
Per Share
Reconciliation
Diluted operating earnings
(loss) per shar $ (84 % A8 $ 34 $ 18 ¢ 46 % (.35) $ 1.3€
Per share effect of special
provision and merger-
related charge — — — (.04) — — (.20
Diluted earnings
(loss) per share
(GAAP) $ (84 % A5 $§ 34 $ 09 $ 46 % (.35) $ 1.1€

Provision for Loan Losses
Reconciliation
Operating provision for loa

losses $ 76,00 $1550C $ 7,50C $26,50C $ 3,70 $ 99,00( $ 11,10(
Special provision for fraud

related loan losse — — — 3,00(C — — 15,00(
Provision for loan losse!

(GAAP) $ 76,00 $1550C $ 7,50C $2950( $ 3,70 $ 99,00( $ 26,10(

Nonperforming Assets
Reconciliation

Nonperforming asse
excluding frau-related



asset:

Fraud-related loans and
OREO included in
nonperforming asse
Nonperforming assets

(GAAP)

Allowance for Loan Losse!
Reconciliation
Allowance for loan losses
excluding special fraud-
related allowanc
Fraud-related allowance for
loan losse:
Allowance for loan losse
(GAAP)

Net Charge Offs
Reconciliation

Net charge offs excludin
charge off of fraud-
related loan:

Fraud-related loans charged

off
Net charge offs (GAAP

Allowance for Loan Losse:
to Loans Ratio
Reconciliation

Allowance for loan losses
loans ratio excluding
frauc-related allowanc

Portion of allowance
assigned to fraud-related
loans
Allowance for loan losse

to loans ratio (GAAP

Nonperforming Assets ta
Total Assets Ratio
Reconciliation

Nonperforming assets
total assets ratio
excluding fraud-related
asset:

Fraud-related
nonperforming asse
Nonperforming assets ti

total assets ratio
(GAAP)

Net Charge Offs to
Average Loans Ratio
Reconciliation

Net charge offs to averay
loans ratio excluding
frauc-related loan:

Charge offs of fraud-related
loans
Net charge offs to

average loans ratio
(GAAP)

$174,22°  $14821¢ $8518. $40,95¢ $39,76: 174,22 39,76

3,47 3,94 4,68: 530: _ 23,57¢ 3,47 23,57¢

$177,70:  $152,16: $89,86: $46,25( $63,33 177,70 63,33

$111,29¢ $ 91,038 $89,84¢ $89,42: $75,93¢ 111,29 75,93t

— — — — 15,00 — 15,00¢

$111,29¢ $ 91,03% $89,84¢ $89,42: $90,93¢ 111,29 90,93t

$5573¢ $14,31¢ $ 7,07 $1301: $ 523¢ 77,12 8,82:

— — — 18,00 — — —

$ 5573¢ $14,31¢ $ 7,07 $3101: $ 523¢ 77,12 8,82:
1.91% 1.5%% 151%  1.51%  1.2t% 1.91% 1.26%

— — — — 25 — 25
1.91% 1.55% 151%  1.51% _ 1.5%% 1.91% 1.55%
2.1€% 1.7% 1.02% 50% A% 2.16% A%

04 05 ol 0€ 28 .04 26
2.2(% 1.84% 1.0%% 56% T7% 2.2(% 7%
3.77% 97% AE% 87% 35% 1.74% 21%

— — — 1.2 — — —
3.77% 97% A%  2.07% 35% 1.74% 21%
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Table 2 — Financial Highlights

Selected Financial Information

Third
2008 2007 Quarter For the Nine YTD
(in thousands, except per share Third Second First Fourth Third 200¢-2007 Months Ended 200€-2007
data; taxable equivalent) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Change 2008 2007 Change
INCOME SUMMARY
Interest revenu $ 112,51 $ 116,98: $ 129,04: $ 140,76t $ 144,88 $ 358,53 $ 410,15(
Interest expens 53,71¢ 55,23: 62,75¢ 71,03¢ 73,20: 171,70: 205,39¢
Net interest revenu 58,791 61,75¢ 66,28" 69,73( 71,68 (18)% 186,83: 204,75¢ (9)%
Provision for loan losse(®) 76,00( 15,50( 7,50( 26,50( 3,70(C 99,00( 11,10¢
Fee revenu 13,127 15,10¢ 14,19 16,10( 15,61¢ (16) 42,42% 46,55! 9)
Total operating revenue (4,08¢) 61,35¢ 72,98¢ 59,33( 83,59¢ (105) 130,25 240,20! (46)
Operating expense 56,97( 49,76 47,52¢ 49,33¢ 48,18: 18 154,26( 140,72! 10
Income (loss) before tax: (61,05¢) 11,597 25,45¢ 9,994 35,41« (272) (24,00¢) 99,48( (129)
Income tax expense (bene (21,189 4,50¢ 9,377 3,96( 12,87¢ (7,303) 36,528
Net operating income (loss (39,879 7,098 16,07¢ 6,03¢ 22,53t 277) (16,70%) 62,957 (127)
Fraud loss provision, net of t(!) — — — 1,832 — — 9,16¢
Net income (loss $ (39879 $ 7,09t $ 16,07¢ $ 4201 $ 22,53¢ (277) $ (16,70) $ 53,79: (131)
OPERATING PERFORMANCE @)
Earnings (loss) per common
share!
Basic $ (849 % A5 $ 34 3% 13 % 47 (279 $ (35) % 1.3¢ (125)
Diluted (.84 AE 34 13 4€ (289 (.35 1.3€ (126)
Return on tangible equi®@®)®) (30.4%) 5.8¢ 13.1¢ 5.0€ 17.5¢ (3.9¢ 17.42
Return on asse® (1.99) .34 78 .29 1.11 (.27) 1.11
Dividend payout ratic (10.77) 60.0C 26.47 69.2% 19.1¢ (77.19 19.57
GAAP PERFORMANCE
MEASURES
Per common shar
Basic (loss) earning $ (.84 % A8 34 3 08 3 A7 (279 $ (.35) % 1.1¢ (130)
Diluted (loss) earning (.84 AE .34 .08 A€ (283) (.35) 1.1€ (130)
Cash / stock dividends
declarec .08 .0¢ .0¢ .08 .0¢ 0 .27 .27 0
Book value 17.12 17.7¢ 18.5( 17.7C 17.51 ) 17.1% 17.51 2
Tangible book valu®) 10.4¢ 11.0% 11.7¢ 10.92 10.81 3) 10.4¢ 10.81 (3)
Key performance ratio:
Return on equit@®) (19.07% 3.41% 7.85% 2.01% 10.6€% (2.69% 10.04%
Return on asse (1.95) .34 78 .20 1.11 (.27) .95
Net interest margi4 3.17 3.32 3.58 3.7¢ 3.8¢ 3.3t 3.94
Efficiency ratio 79.3¢ 65.0F 59.0¢ 57.61 55.3¢ 67.4% 56.1¢
Dividend payout ratic (10.79) 60.0C 26.47 100.0( 19.1¢ (77.19 22.8¢
Equity to asset 10.2¢ 10.3¢ 10.3( 10.2( 10.32 10.3( 9.3¢
Tangible equity to asse® 6.6 6.77 6.7 6.5€ 6.6 6.72 6.6
ASSET QUALITY
Allowance for loan losse $ 111,29¢ $ 91,03t $ 8984¢ $ 8942: $ 90,93t $ 111,29¢ $ 90,93t
Net charg-offs ) 55,73¢ 14,31% 7,07¢ 13,01 5,23¢ 77,12¢ 8,82:
Non-performing loan: 139,26¢ 123,78t 67,72¢ 28,21¢ 46,78 139,26¢ 46,78
OREO 38,43¢ 28,37¢ 22,13¢ 18,03¢ 16,55¢ 38,43¢ 16,554
Total nor-performing asset 177,70: 152,16: 89,86¢ 46,25¢ 63,331 177,70: 63,331
Allowance for loan losses to
loans®) 1.91% 1.5% 1.51% 1.51% 1.28% 1.91% 1.28%
Net charge-offs to average
loansW® 3.77 .97 A8 .87 .3t 1.74 .21
Non-performing assets to loans
and OREC 3.0¢ 2.5 1.5C .78 1.0€ 3.02 1.0€
Non-performing assets to total
asset: 2.2C 1.84 1.07 .56 77 2.2C a7
AVERAGE BALANCES
Loans $5,889,16! $5,933,14. $5,958,29! $5,940,231 $5,966,93: @ $5,926,73 $5,665,31 5
Investment securitie 1,454,741 1,507,241 1,485,51! 1,404,791 1,308,19: 11 1,482,39 1,235,18: 20
Earning assef 7,384,28' 7,478,01 7,491,481 7,424,99; 7,332,49: 1 7,451,010 6,951,57. 7
Total asset 8,146,88! 8,295,74 8,305,62 8,210,12 8,083,73! 1 8,249,04. 7,568,911 9
Deposits 6,597,33! 6,461,36. 6,051,06! 6,151,471 6,246,31! 6 6,370,75: 5,987,22! 6
Shareholder equity 837,48 856,72 855,65! 837,19¢ 834,09 0 849,91: 710,95( 20
Common share— basic 47,304 47,06( 46,96¢ 47,20¢ 48,34¢ 47,11 45,45;
Common share— diluted 47,30« 47,24¢ 47,27: 47,652 48,977 47,11 46,23t
AT PERIOD END
Loans $5,829,93°  $5,933,14.  $5,967,83  $5,929,26.  $5,952,74 ) $5,829,93  $5,952,74 (2)
Investment securitie 1,400,82 1,430,58! 1,508,40: 1,356,841 1,296,82! 8 1,400,82 1,296,821 8
Total asset 8,072,54. 8,264,05 8,386,25! 8,207,30: 8,180,601 [€0] 8,072,54. 8,180,601 )
Deposits 6,689,33! 6,696,451 6,175,76! 6,075,95. 6,154,30i 9 6,689,33! 6,154,30! 9
Shareholder equity 816,88( 837,89( 871,45: 831,90: 833,76: ) 816,88( 833,76: 2
Common shares outstandi 47,59¢ 47,09¢ 47,00: 46,90: 47,54 47,59¢ 47,54;

(1) Excludes effect of special $15 million fraud rethtgrovision for loan losses recorded in the secquarter of 2007, ¢



additional $3 million provision in the fourth quartof 2007, and $18 million of related loan chaodfs-recorded in tr
fourth quarter of 2007

(2) Net income available to common shareholders, wiektiudes preferred stock dividends, divided by agerrealize
common equity, which excludes accumulated othemprehensive income (loss

(3) Excludes effect of acquisition related intangitdesl associated amortizatic
(4) Annualized.
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Results of Operations

Net operating loss was $39.9 million for the thipdarter of 2008, compared to net operating incofr®28.5 million fou
the same perioth 2007. Diluted operating loss per share was $84he third quarter of 2008, compared to dilutgebrating
earnings per share of $.46 for the third quarte2Qsf7.

Net operating loss was $16.7 million for the ninenthhs ended September 30, 2008, compared to neitogeincome ¢
$63.0 million for the same period in 2007. Dilutegerating loss per share was $.35 for the nine Insoahded September
2008, compared to diluted operating earnings paresbf $1.36 for the nine months ended Septemhe2Bly.

Net Interest Revenue (Taxable Equivalent)

Net interest revenue (the difference between tteraést earned on assets and the interest paid posite and borrowe
funds) is the single largest component of totakrexe. United actively manages this revenue soorpeovide optimal levels
revenue while balancing interest rate, credit agdidity risks. Net interest revenue for the thraenths ended September
2008 was $58.8 million, down $12.9 million, or 18f@m last year. Average loans decreased $77.8omilbr 1%, from th
third quarter last year. Overall, Unitedioan portfolio decreased slightly, which was suteof the slowdown in the housi
market, particularly in the Atlanta MSA where periend loans decreased $256.6 million from Septerd®e2007. Much of tt
decrease was intentional as management soughb&danee the loan portfolio by reducing the conaditn of residentii
construction loans, particularly in the Atlanta MSere the housing market has been under considestiless. In contra
periodend loans in north Georgia increased $40.5 milliooastal Georgia increased $55.8 million, the Gaiile MSA
increased $31.8 million, east Tennessee incregzed #illion and western North Carolina decreassgl® million.

Average interesearning assets for the third quarter 2008 incre&&dd8 million, or 1%, over the same period in 2
These increases in interest-earning assets were than funded by interebkaring sources, resulting in increases in avi
interest-bearing liabilities of $125.6 million coamed to the same period in 2007. The increaseténastbearing liabilities we
primarily the result of an increase in interestim@adeposits.

The banking industry uses two ratios to measurativel profitability of net interest revenue. Thet nmeterest spre¢
measures the difference between the average yielthterest-earning assets and the average rate gmaidterestearing
liabilities. The interest rate spread eliminates #ffect of non-interediearing deposits and gives a direct perspectivéne
effect of market interest rate movements. The mtetrést margin is defined as net interest revesug j@ercent of average tc
interest-earning assets and takes into accoumdbigve effect of investing non-interest-bearirgpdsits and capital.

For the three months ended September 30, 2008G0W the net interest spread was 2.82% and 3.3&8pectively, whil
the net interest margin was 3.17% and 3.89%, réispdc The compression of the spread and margis pramarily the result ¢
a rise in norperforming assets and increased deposit pricingtieg from increased competition for deposits doidiquidity
pressures affecting the banking industry as a whidie compression of the spread and margin wasdaledo the 325 ba:
point lowering of the prime rate initiated by actiof the Federal Reserve beginning in Septemb@f 20id the resultir
repricing of our interest earning assets fasten thar interesbearing liabilities. Also contributing to the lowspread and n
interest margin was a shift in earniagset mix from loans to investment securities. Withadditional 100 basis point lower
of the prime rate initiated by the Federal Resenvéctober 8, 2008 and October 29, 2008, manageexpetts the spread ¢
margin to further compress.

The average yield on interes&rning assets for the third quarter of 2008 w3%, compared with 7.85% in the tt
quarter of 2007. Loan yields were down 214 basiatpaompared with the third quarter of 2007, priitgadue to the 325 bas
point decrease in the prime rate since Septeml#f 20d an increase in non-performing assets.

The average cost of interdstaring liabilities for the third quarter was 3.25%mpared to 4.51% from the same peric
2007. Even as the cost of borrowed funds decrea@@dbasis points compared with the second quaft@0@7, the cost
interestbearing deposits only decreased 111 basis poirtseisame timeframe. Deposit pricing decreasedthess borrowe
funds because at the same time index interest vates dropping, increasing competition for depoképt deposit pricing
higher levels in relation to the cost to borrowdan
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The following table shows the relationship betwésterest revenue and expense, and the average &snofumterest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitiesHerthree months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007

Table 3 — Average Consolidated Balance Sheets an@&iNnterest Analysis

For the Three Months Ended September 30,

2008 2007
Average Avg. Average Avg.
(dollars in thousands, taxable eguivalent) Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
Assets:
Interes-earning asset:
Loans, net of unearned incor)( $5,889,16! $ 93,27( 6.3(% $5,966,93. $126,99: 8.44%
Taxable securitie® 1,422,32. 18,25¢ 5.12 1,266,60' 16,637 5.2t
Tax-exempt securitie®)®) 32,41¢ 572 7.07 41,58: 704 6.77
Federal funds sold and other interest-
earning asse! 40,37¢ 40¢ 4.0 57,361 551 3.84
Total interest-earning assets 7,384,28 112,51( 6.07 7,332,49; 144,88« 7.8%
Nor-interes-earning asset:
Allowance for loan losse (93,687 (93,837
Cash and due from ban 111,74: 141,53t
Premises and equipme 180,82! 173,60!
Other asset® 563,71« 529,93t
Total assets $8,146,88! $8,083,73!
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Interes-bearing liabilities:
Interes-bearing deposit:
NOW $1,463,74. $ 6,77¢ 1.84 $1,431,16; $ 12,04¢ 3.3¢
Money marke 421,62¢ 2,29¢ 2.17 496,00! 5,00z 4.0C
Savings 182,52! 158 .32 201,03: 558 1.0¢
Time less than $100,0( 1,779,55! 17,81 3.9¢ 1,624,69i 20,15 4,92
Time greater than $100,0! 1,530,71! 15,82 4.11 1,391,13! 18,19: 5.1¢
Brokered 530,70! 5,407 4.0t 358,61: 4,51¢ 5.0C
Total interes-bearing deposit 5,908,86! 48,271 3.25 5,502,65! 60,46: 4.3¢€
Federal funds purchased and other
borrowings 256,74 1,11¢ 1.7: 348,47 4,73¢ 5.3¢
Federal Home Loan Bank advan: 286,54( 2,10¢ 2.92 474,55! 5,90z 4.9
Long-term debi 118,75t 2,22 7.4¢€ 119,59¢ 2,10(C 6.97
Total borrowed fund 662,03t 5,44¢ 3.27 942,62: 12,74( 5.3¢€
Total interest-bearing liabilities 6,570,90 53,71¢ 3.28 6,445,27 73,20: 4,51
Non-interes-bearing liabilities:
Nor-interes-bearing deposit 688,47( 743,66:
Other liabilities 50,01¢ 60,70
Total liabilities 7,309,39: 7,249,64!
Shareholder equity 837,48 834,09:
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity $8,146,88! $8,083,73!
Net interest revenue $ 58,79! $ 71,68
Net interes-rate spreai 2.82% 3.3%
Net interest margin (4) 3.17% 3.8%

(1) Interest revenue on taxempt securities and loans has been increasexfléotrcomparable interest on taxable secu
and loans. The rate used was 39%, reflecting titatsty federal income tax rate and the federabt@justed state incor
tax rate.

(2) Included in the average balance of loans outstgnalia loans where the accrual of interest has diseontinued
(3) Securities available for sale are shown at amattizest. Pretax unrealized losses of $11.7 millian2008 an



$13.3 million in 2007 are included in other as$etgpurposes of this presentatic
(4) Netinterest margin is taxable equivalent-interest revenue divided by average inte-earning asset
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The following table shows the relationship betwésterest revenue and expense, and the average &snofumterest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitiegsHernine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007.

Table 4 — Average Consolidated Balance Sheets an@&iNnterest Analysis

For the Nine Months Ended September 30,

2008 2007
Average Avg. Average Avg.
(dollars in thousands, taxable eguivalent) Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
Assets:
Interes-earning asset:
Loans, net of unearned incor®)) $5,926,73.  $299,60: 6.75% $5,665,31. $360,43( 8.51%
Taxable securitie® 1,447,40! 55,76¢ 5.1¢ 1,192,81! 46,08: 5.1t
Tax-exempt securitie®)®) 34,98t¢ 1,87¢ 7.1t 42,36¢ 2,16( 6.8(
Federal funds sold and other interest-
earning assel 41,88¢ 1,29 411 51,07¢ 1,47¢ 3.8¢
Total interest-earning assets 7,451,01 358,53¢ 6.4 6,951,57. 410,15( 7.8¢
Nor-interes-earning asset:
Allowance for loan losse (93,165 (78,547
Cash and due from ban 136,92( 130,81¢
Premises and equipme 181,21( 159,67-
Other asset® 573,06( 405,38t
Total assets $8,249,04. $7,568,91
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Interes-bearing liabilities:
Interes-bearing deposit:
NOW $1,476,99: $ 22,58 2.04 $1,378,200 $ 34,14 3.31
Money marke 427,67¢ 7,51¢ 2.3t 371,71t 11,08: 3.9¢
Savings 184,71: 56C AC 187,69: 1,23¢ .88
Time less than $100,0( 1,659,30! 53,32( 4.2¢ 1,631,24 59,92t 491
Time greater than $100,0! 1,460,27 48,33( 4.4z 1,383,00. 54,00( 5.22
Brokered 480,16t 15,10¢ 4.2C 342,16: 12,54: 4.9C
Total interes-bearing deposit 5,689,13 147,41¢ 3.4¢€ 5,294,01i 172,92° 4.3
Federal funds purchased and other
borrowings 396,79t 7,25¢ 2.44 255,11! 10,22¢ 5.3¢€
Federal Home Loan Bank advan 452,82 10,66¢ 3.1t 430,15: 15,73¢ 4.8¢
Long-term debi 111,60° 6,36¢€ 7.62 115,39( 6,50t 7.5¢4
Total borrowed fund 961,23: 24,28¢ 3.3¢ 800,65 32,46¢ 5.42
Total interest-bearing liabilities 6,650,36! 171,70« 3.4t 6,094,67. 205,39¢ 4.51
Non-interes-bearing liabilities:
Nor-interes-bearing deposit 681,61! 693,20°
Other liabilities 67,14¢ 70,07¢
Total liabilities 7,399,13 6,857,96!
Shareholder equity 849,91. 710,95(
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity $8,249,04. $7,568,911
Net interest revenue $186,83( $204,75:
Net interes-rate sprea 2.98% 3.38%
Net interest margin (4) 3.35% 3.94%

(1) Interest revenue on taxempt securities and loans has been increasesfléatrcomparable interest on taxable secu
and loans. The rate used was 39%, reflecting titetsty federal income tax rate and the federabidjusted state incor
tax rate.

(2) Included in the average balance of loans outstgnalia loans where the accrual of interest has diseontinued



(3) Securities available for sale are shown at amattizest. Pretax unrealized gains of $5.7 million2i608 and prete
unrealized losses of $10.4 million in 2007 areudeld in other assets for purposes of this present

(4) Net interest margin is taxable equivalent-interest revenue divided by average inte-earning asset
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The following table shows the relative effect ort mgerest revenue for changes in the average andstg amoun
(volume) of interest-earning assets and intebbestring liabilities and the rates earned and paicduch assets and liabilit
(rate). Variances resulting from a combination lbfmges in rate and volume are allocated in prapott the absolute doll
amounts of the change in each category.

Table 5 — Change in Interest Revenue and Expense ariTaxable Equivalent Basis
(in thousands)

Three Months Ended September 30, 20(  Nine Months Ended September 30, 20(

Compared to 2007 Compared to 2007
Increase (decrease) Increase (decrease)
Due to Changes ir Due to Changes ir
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest-earning assets
Loans $ (1,63 $ (32,08)) $ (33,72) $ 16,00t $ (76,839 $ (60,829
Taxable securitie 2,00¢ (385) 1,621 9,891 (207) 9,68¢
Tax-exempt securitie (161) 30 (131) (449) 16& (2849)
Federal funds sold and other
interes-earning assel (177) 29 (142) (32€) 13¢ (187)
Total interest-earning
assets 39 (32,419 (32,379 25,12 (76,739 (51,616
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW accountt 26¢ (5,53¢6) (5,26%) 2,30 (13,867 (11,567)
Money market accoun (665) (2,04)) (2,70€) 1,48t (5,049 (3,567)
Savings deposil 47 (359 (400 (19 (657) (67€)
Time deposits less than $100,( 1,79¢ (4,137) (2,339 1,01t (7,620 (6,60%)
Time deposits greater than
$100,00C 1,701 (4,06¢) (2,367) 2,89¢ (8,569 (5,670)
Brokered deposit 1,871 (989) 88¢€ 4,527 (1,962) 2,56¢
Total interes-bearing deposit 4,92¢ (17,119 (12,197 12,20: (37,719 (25,51)
Federal funds purchased & othe
borrowings (1,010 (2,612) (3,6272) 4,11¢ (7,097 (2,972)
Federal Home Loan Bank
advance: (1,867) (1,930 (3,797) 79z (5,862) (5,070)
Long-term debi (15) 142 127 (215) 76 (139)
Total borrowed fund (2,897) (4,400 (7,292) 4,69¢ (12,877 (8,18))
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 2,03¢ (21,519 (19,48 16,89¢ (50,590 (33,697
Increase in net interest
revenue $ (1,99 $ (10,89H $ (12,890 $ 8,22¢ $ (26,14 $ (17,929

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $76.0 million foe third quarter of 2008, compared with $3.7 il for the sam
period in 2007. Net loan chargdfs as an annualized percentage of average odietaioans for the three months en
September 30, 2008 was 3.77%, compared to .35%héothird quarter of 2007. For the first nine mentif 2008 net loe
charge offs as an annualized percentage of averstgtanding loans was 1.74% versus .21% for 2087hA housing market
general in United footprint has struggled, most notably in the At#aMSA, it has made it difficult for some developéc
obtain cash flows from selling lots and houses thate needed to service their debt. This is pathefdeterioration of tt
residential construction and housing markets tlaatdffected the Southeast and resulted in higleelitdosses and an incre
in non-performing assets.

The provision for loan losses is based on managemevaluation of losses inherent in the loan padfanc
corresponding analysis of the allowance for loasés at quarteznd. The amount of provision recorded in the thjudrter wa
the amount required such that the total allowammreldan losses reflects, in the estimation of managnt, the approprie
balance and is adequate to cover inherent lossegeifoan portfolio. The substantial increase i finovision was a result
further credit deterioration within Uniteslloan portfolio, mostly in the residential constian and development portion of
portfolio within the Atlanta MSA. Due to manageniesnexpectation of continued weakening in the housiragket, Unite
disposed of $66 million of its most troubled assewulting in a significant increase in chaafés in the third quarter of 20C
Additional discussion on loan quality and the albmwe for loan losses is included in the Asset Quadiction of this repor



Fee Revenue
Although United continues to focus on increasing fievenue through new products and services, fesmue for the thre

months ended September 30, 2008 was $13.1 miliodecrease of $2.5 million, or 16%, from 2007. Tokowing table
presents the components of fee revenue for the ¢hiarter and the first nine months of 2008 andr200
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Table 6 — Fee Revenue

(dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2008 2007 Change 2008 2007 Change

Service charges and fe $ 8,171 $ 7,85t 4% $ 23,94: $ 23,08 4%
Mortgage loan and other related f 1,41C 2,11¢ (33 5,57¢ 6,817 (18)
Consulting fee: 1,727 2,381 (27) 5,78¢ 6,36¢ 9)
Brokerage fee 90t 89t 1 2,812 3,031 @)
Securities gains, ni 12C 22t 477 1,81¢
Loss on prepayments of borrowir — — — (1,169
Other 78¢ 2,141 (63) 3,83 6,591 42

Total $ 13,12 $ 15,61¢ (16) $ 42,42] $ 46,55 9

Mortgage loans and related fees for the first quadiecreased $708,000, or 33%, from 2007. Thisedser was due
decreased demand for new mortgage loans resutimg the slow housing market. In the third quarte2@08, United close
492 loans totaling $83.6 million compared with 3d8ns totaling $100.8 million in the third quartd#r2007. Substantially ¢
originated residential mortgages were sold intosthendary market including the right to serviasthloans.

Consulting fees decreased $654,000, or 27%, comigar@007. This decrease is a direct result ofcilmeent econom
stress affecting the financial services industryclvtihas limited sales of new consulting projects.

Other fee revenue decreased $1.4 million, or 63%mpared to 2007. This decline is due to lower reeegenerated |
United’s bank owned life insurance assets and ceferompensation plan assets.

Operating Expenses

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008,dptahting expenses were $57.0 million, an incredd8% compare
with $48.2 million for the same period in 2007. Tih#lowing table presents the components of opegatixpenses for the thi
months and nine months ended September 30, 2003047d
Table 7 — Operating Expenses

(dollarsin thousands)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2008 2007 Change 2008 2007 Change

Salaries and employee bene $ 28,62t $ 29,69¢ 4% $ 86,13: $ 88,03 2)%
Communications and equipme 3,90¢ 3,93¢ (@D} 11,59: 11,59: —
Occupancy 3,90¢ 3,613 8 11,32¢ 10,12 12
Advertising and public relatior 1,39¢ 1,53% (9) 4,75¢ 5,651 (16)
Postage, printing and suppli 1,49: 1,47¢ 1 4,53: 4,81¢ (6)
Professional fee 1,59¢ 1,92( ()] 5,19¢ 5,40¢ 4
Amortization of intangible: 752 771 2 2,26¢ 1,96¢ 15
Other 15,29( 5,224 19¢ 28,457 13,12« 117

Total $ 56,97( $ 48,180 18 $ 154,26( $140,72! 10

Salaries and employee benefits for the third qua®@8 totaled $28.8 million, a decrease of $1.lioni or 4%, from th
same period in 2007. This decrease was primariéytddower bonus and incentive costs in 2008. Att&aber 30, 2008, to
staff was 2,026, an increase of 14 employees fleenthird quarter 2007, most of which were addethespecial assets ¢
credit administration areas.

Professional fees for the third quarter 2008 deseré&324,000, or 17%, from the same period in 200&.decrease fron
year ago was due to postponement and reducticowarIpriority projects at this tim
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Other expense of $15.3 million increased $10.lionilfrom 2007. The increase was due to an incre&é$8.5 million ir
writedowns and expenses on foreclosed propertidsaanincrease in FDIC insurance premiums of apprately $482,001
which also account for most of the year to datedase over 2007.

Income Taxes

Income tax benefit for the third quarter 2008 wa4.8 million as compared with income tax expens&ld.4 million fo
the third quarter of 2007, representing a 35.3%aB8.5% effective tax rate, respectively. Forftte nine months, the incor
tax benefit was $9.0 million for the period endi®gptember 30, 2008 and income tax expense was BRiidh for the perioi
ending September 30, 2007. The effective tax matehfose periods was 35.0% and 35.3% respectifélyg.effective tax rati
were lower than the statutory tax rates primarilje do interest revenue on certain investment siesirand loans that ¢
exempt from income taxes, tax exempt fee revenuktax credits received on affordable housing inwesits. Additione
information regarding income taxes can be foundllate 14 to the consolidated financial statemerésl fivith Uniteds 200°
Form 10-K.

The effective tax rate for the third quarter of 8@so reflects a decision by management to suerecettain bank own
life insurance (BOLI) policies with a cash surrendelue of approximately $64 million. The policiegere part of a BOL
transaction entered into by the company in AprD20The underlying assets in which the cash suerendlue had be:
invested had depreciated significantly since tlwiginal purchase. United was able to recover ftigimal investment b
surrendering the policies, thereby avoiding anyg iosvalue of the underlying assets; however, Wnitdl incur a tax charge ¢
the accumulated earnings of the policies. The #ffedax rate for the third quarter, absent the ¢harge on the surrend
would have been approximately 40%. The 40% effectix is above United’blended state and federal statutory rate of 3
reflecting the tax benefit of the current pre-tagd plus the positive effect of tax-exempt earnanys tax credits.

Balance Sheet Review

Total assets at September 30, 2008 and 2007 wetebB®n and $8.2 billion, respectively. Averatgal assets for ti
third quarter 2008 were $8.1 billion, up $63 mitlivom average assets for the third quarter of 2007

Goodwill

United reviews its goodwill for impairment annualtyr more frequently if circumstances indicate thaddwill has bee
impaired. During the last four quarters, Unitedi@c& price has traded below its pgrare book value and falling below tang
book value for a short period of time, which weidet reflects uncertainty about the economic cyatber than the value of 1
underlying franchise and core business. The cumenohomic environment has resulted in lower eamiwgh higher cred
costs and those costs have been reflected in tloeni@ statement as well as valuation adjustmenttsetdoan balances throu
increases to the level of the allowance for loassés. Although management believes that goodwslirfee been impaired a
that the value of United’business remains intact and earnings will retoiprior period levels when the credit cycle reasye
thorough impairment test will be performed durihg fourth quarter.
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Loans

The following table presents a summary of the lpartfolio.
Table 8 — Loans Outstanding
(dollars in thousands)

September 3C December 31  September 3C

2008 2007 2007
By Loan Type
Commercial (secured by real este $ 160365 $ 147593 $ 1,441,19
Commercial constructio 508,83: 527,12: 530,25}
Commercial (commercial and industri 425,05:. 417,71! 408,46t
Total commercia 2,537,53! 2,420,76! 2,379,91.
Residential constructia 1,595,98: 1,829,501 1,935,224
Residential mortgag 1,528,49! 1,501,911 1,459,02.
Installment 167,92. 177,07: 178,56
Total loans $ 582993 $ 50929,26: $ 5,952,74
As a percentage of total loar
Commercial (secured by real este 28% 25% 24%
Commercial constructio 9 9 9
Commercial (commercial and industri 7 7 7
Total commercia 44 41 40
Residential constructic 27 31 32
Residential mortgag 26 25 25
Installment 3 3 3
Total 10(% 10C% 10C%
By Geographic Location
Atlanta MSA $ 1,800,04 $ 200208 $ 2,056,65
Gainesville MSA 426,05( 399,56( 394,25:
North Georgie 2,066,16. 2,060,22. 2,025,61!
Western North Carolin 815,28( 805,99¢ 833,52:
Coastal Georgi 457,71( 415,62: 401,94(
East Tennesse 264,69: 245,76 240,75¢
Total loans $ 582993 $ 50929,26. $ 5,952,774

Substantially all of United' loans are to customers located in the immediaekeh areas of its community banks
Georgia, North Carolina, and Tennessee. At SepteBhe2008, total loans were $5.8 billion, a desesaf $123 million, ¢
2%, from September 30, 2007. The rate of loan drdvelgan to decline in the first quarter of 2007 had continued throu
2008. The slowdown in loan growth was due to detation in the residential construction and housimgrkets. Thi
deterioration resulted in part in an oversupplylaif inventory within UnitedS markets, which further slowed construc
activities and acquisition and development projetts date, the slowdown in the housing market reenkmost severe in |
Atlanta MSA.

Asset Quality and Risk Elements

United manages asset quality and controls credk tiirough review and oversight of the loan poitfas well a
adherence to policies designed to promote soune@rumiing and loan monitoring practices. Unitectredit administratic
function is responsible for monitoring asset qyal#stablishing credit policies and procedures anfbrcing the consiste
application of these policies and procedures atfathe Community Banks. Additional information tite credit administratic
function is included in Item 1 under the headingan Review and Non-performing Assets in United’s Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K.

The provision for loan losses charged to earnings based upon managemsenjtidgment of the amount necessar
maintain the allowance at a level appropriate tsodt losses inherent in the loan portfolio at qgreehd. The amount ea
period is dependent upon many factors, includirmmgn and changes in the composition of the loanfqlar, net chargesffs,
delinquencies, managementssessment of loan portfolio quality, the valieatlateral, and other economic factors and tre
The evaluation of these factors is performed qugrtey management through an analysis of the apjatgmess of tf
allowance for loan losses. The increase in thenaliece for loan losses during the third quarter@if®was due to an increas:



classified assets, deterioration in the collatesles leading to an expectation of higher chaffg-upon default ar
further weakening of the housing market.

22




Table of Contents

Reviews of norperforming loans, past due loans and larger creditsigned to identify potential charges to thevadinc:
for loan losses, as well as determine the adeqagtlye allowance, are conducted on a regular lihgi®g the quarter. The
reviews are performed by the responsible lendirigars, as well as by a separate loan review deyeart, and consider st
factors as the financial strength of borrowers, thkie of the applicable collateral, past loan lesperience, anticipated Ic
losses, growth in the loan portfolio, prevailingpromic conditions and other factors. United alsesusxternal loan review
supplement the activities of United’s loan reviegpdrtment and to ensure the independence of thedwéew process.

The following table presents a summary of the ckang the allowance for loan losses for the threerdne month perioi
ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 on a GAAP basis.

Table 9 — Summary of Loan Loss Experience

(dollars in thousands)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
Balance beginning of peric $ 91,03 $ 9247 $ 89,42 $ 66,56¢
Allowance from acquisition — — 7,091
Charge-offs:
Commercial (commercial and industri 1,02t 391 1,75¢ 673
Commercial (secured by real este 257 157 1,37¢ 521
Commercial constructio 22k — 35C 24k
Residential constructic 50,30¢ 3,617 65,461 4,537
Residential mortgag 3,35¢ 1,05¢ 7,031 3,007
Installment 801 542 2,13¢ 1,497
Total loans chargeoff 55,97 5,76: 78,12¢ 10,48(
Recoveries
Commercial (commercial and industri 7 6 39 17¢
Commercial (secured by real este — 33 68 97
Commercial constructio — — — 1
Residential constructic 77 10€ 231 10¢
Residential mortgag 27 91 112 44~
Installment 12F 291 55C 827
Total recoverie: 23€ 527 1,00( 1,65¢
Net charg-offs 55,73¢ 5,23¢ 77,12¢ 8,82
Provision for loan losse 76,00( 3,70( 99,00( 26,10(
Balance end of peric $ 111,29¢ $ 90,93t $ 111,29¢ $ 90,93
Net charg-offs by region
Atlanta MSA $ 48,31 $ 4,352 $ 63,64 $ 6,31%
Gainesville MSA 1,47( 20 2,15: 19
North Georgie 4,56 661 7,67¢ 2,16¢
Western North Carolin 85t 19 1,191 23z
Coastal Georgi 24¢ 11 1,271 12
East Tennesse 282 172 1,191 77
Balance end of peria $  55,73¢ $ 5,23¢ $ 77,12« $ 8,822
Total loans:
At period enc $ 5,829,93 $ 5,952,744 $ 5,829,93 $ 5,952,744
Average 5,889,16! 5,966,93. 5,926,73. 5,665,31.
As a percentage of average loans (annuali:
Net charg-offs 3.71% .35% 1.74% .21%
Provision for loan losse 5.1z .25 2.2 .62
Allowance as a percentage of period end I¢ 1.91 1.52 1.91 1.5

Allowance as a percentage of period end non-
performing loan: 80 194 80 194
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Management believes that the allowance for loasel®sat September 30, 2008 reflects the losseseimhar the loa
portfolio. This assessment involves uncertainty idgment; therefore, the adequacy of the allowdacéan losses cannot
determined with precision and may be subject tanghan future periods. In addition, bank regulatanghorities, as part of th
periodic examination of the Bank, may require atjusnts to the provision for loan losses in futuegiquds if, in their opinior
the results of their review warrant such additions.

Non-performing Assets

The table below summarizes non-performing assets @AAP basis.
Table 10 — Non-Performing Assets
(dollars in thousands)

September 3C December 31  September 3C

2008 2007 2007

Non-accrual loan: $ 139,26¢ $ 28,21¢ $ 46,78:
Loans past due 90 days or more and still accr — — —

Total nor-performing loan: 139,26t 28,21¢ 46,78:
Other real estate owni 38,43¢ 18,03¢ 16,55¢

Total nor-performing asset $ 177,70  $ 46,25¢ $ 63,33’
Non-performing loans as a percentage of total Ic 2.3% 48% 7%
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total a 2.2C .5€ 77

Non-performing loans totaled $139.3 million, compareithw$28.2 million at December 31, 2007 and $46.Bioni at
September 30, 2007. The ratio of nmerforming loans to total loans increased 160 bpsists from September 30, 2(
reflecting a deterioration in United’s residenttanstruction and development portfolio primarily tire Atlanta MSA. Non-
performing assets, which include nperforming loans and foreclosed real estate, ttle77.7 million at September 30, 2C
compared to $46.3 million at December 31, 2007%6813 million at September 30, 2007.

United’s policy is to classify loans as nanerual when, in the opinion of management, thecpal and interest on a Ic
is not likely to be repaid in accordance with thar terms or when the loan becomes 90 days pasiraués not well secur
and in the process of collection. When a loan assified on noraccrual status, interest previously accrued butcobécted i
reversed against current interest revenue. Paymergs/ed on a non-accrual loan are applied toaeduitstanding principal.

At September 30, 2008 there were $94.0 million aznk classified as impaired under the definitiotlimed in SFAS
No. 114Accounting By Creditors For Impairment of a Loan . Of these, $42.4 million did not have a speciésarve allocate
and $51.6 million had specific reserves allocatgdling $17.2 million. The average recorded investtrin impaired loans f
the quarter ended September 30, 2008 was $10di6mmihterest revenue recognized on loans whig tivere impaired for tt
first nine months of 2008 was $598,000.

I nvestment Securities

The composition of the investment securities ptidfeeflects UnitedS investment strategy of maintaining an approg
level of liquidity while providing a relatively dtée source of revenue. The investment securitigtfgho also provides
balance to interest rate risk and credit risk imeotcategories of the balance sheet while providinghicle for the investment
available funds, furnishing liquidity, and supplgisecurities to pledge as required collateral &tain deposits.

Total investment securities available for sale aartprend increased $104.0 million from a year ago. Thestmer
portfolio is used as a supplemental tool to stabilnterest rate sensitivity and increase net ésterevenue. At September
2008 and September 30, 2007, the securities portipresented approximately 17.4% and 15.9% af adsets, respectively.

The investment securities portfolio primarily catsiof U.S. Government sponsored agency morthagked securitie
non-agency mortgage-backed securities, U.S. Gowamhrmagency securities, and municipal securities.rtyggebacke:
securities rely on the underlying pools of mortghapns to provide a cash flow of principal and iie&t. The actual maturities
these securities will differ from contractual maties because loans underlying the securities capgy. Decreases in inter
rates will generally cause an acceleration of pyeysnt levels. In a declining interest rate envirentn United may not be al
to reinvest the proceeds from these prepaymerdssats that have comparable yields. In a risirgenvironment, the oppos
occurs. Prepayments tend to slow and the weightethge life extends. This is referred to as extamsisk which can lead
lower levels of liquidity due to the delay of casteipts and can result in the holding of a beloarkat yielding asset for
longer time period.
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Deposits

Total deposits as of September 30, 2008 were $flidhb an increase of $535 million, or 9%, fromBember 30, 200
Total non-interesbearing demand deposit accounts of $680 milliorretesed $57 million, or 8%, and NOW, money marke
savings accounts of $2.0 billion decreased $18Bamjlor 9%. Management believes the decreases prarerily caused t
seasonal timing, the slowdown in the local econamg the resultant increase in the use of fundstited’s customers becat
average balances have declined over the past year.

Total time deposits, excluding brokered deposispfaSeptember 30, 2008 were $3.3 hillion, an iaseeof $343 millior
or 12%, from September 30, 2007. Time deposits tleas $100,000 totaled $1.8 billion, an increas&2f9 million, or 14%
from a year ago. Time deposits of $100,000 and tegretotaled $1.5 billion as of September 30, 2088, increase
$123 million, or 9%, from September 30, 2007. Dgrihe second quarter, United made a decision twedgtpursue tim
deposits by offering a 15 month certificate of dgpat an attractive rate, in order to increasaidlify. The program was ve
successful and added over $400 million of custotegosits. United also takes advantage of “broketien® deposits, issued
certificates of less than $100,000, as an altersatece of coseffective funding. Brokered time deposits as of t8eyber 3(
2008 were $745 million, compared with $308 millanSeptember 30, 2007.

Wholesale Funding

At September 30, 2008, the Bank was a sharehotder Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB"Through this affiliatior
FHLB secured advances totaled $285 million and $&il%on as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, respygt This declin:
was the result of a successful CD program durirgstecond quarter of 2008 and use of brokered dspiosprder to kee
collateral available for liquidity purposes. Unitadticipates continued use of this short- and Iargy source of funds. FHL
advances outstanding at September 30, 2008 had fixetth and floating interest rates from .81% to@4. Additional
information regarding FHLB advances, is providedNimte 10 to the consolidated financial statemamtkided in Uniteds 200°
Form 10-K.

At September 30, 2008, United had $120 million @dé&ral funds purchased, repurchase agreementstldshorterm
borrowings outstanding, compared to $502 milliortstanding at September 30, 2007. United takes &aganof thes
additional sources of liquidity when rates are fabe compared to other forms of shtatm borrowings, such as FH
advances and brokered deposits.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Management

The absolute level and volatility of interest rates have a significant effect on Unitedirofitability. The objective i
interest rate risk management is to identify andhage the sensitivity of net interest revenue tanghy interest rates, in orc
to achieve United overall financial goals. Based on economic cdammi, asset quality and various other considers;
management establishes tolerance ranges for intatessensitivity and manages within these ranges.

Net interest revenue is influenced by changes énléliel of interest rates. United manages its ex@oto fluctuations i
interest rates through policies established byAtsget/Liability Management Committee (“ALCO’ALCO meets regularly ai
has responsibility for approving asset/liability mgement policies, formulating and implementingtsigies to improve balar
sheet positioning and/or earnings, and reviewingddrs interest rate sensitivity.

One of the tools management utilizes to estimagestmsitivity of net interest revenue to changemterest rates is |
interest rate simulation model. Such estimatedased upon a number of assumptions for variousasiosnincluding the lev
of balance sheet growth, deposit repricing charisties and the rate of prepayments. The simulatimdel measures t
potential change in net interest revenue over dvewmmonth period under various interest rate sdesatJniteds baselin
scenario assumes rates remain flat (“flat rate @@l over the next twelve months and is the scenarib diaothers ar
compared to in order to measure the change innteteist revenue. United runs ramp scenarios thsatnges gradual increas
and decreases of 200 basis points each over théwslye months. United’ policy for net interest revenue simulation isited
to a change from the flat rate scenario of lesa @6 for the up or down 200 basis point ramp stes@ver twelve month
At September 30, 2008, Unitedsimulation model indicated that a 200 basis poitrease in rates over the next twelve mc
would cause a 3.2% increase in net interest revandea 200 basis point decrease in rates overdgkietwelve months wou
cause an approximate 4.0% decrease in net integeshue. On October 8, 2008 and October 29, 2068 Federal Ope
Markets Committee of the Federal Reserve reducedattyeted federal funds rate by 50 basis poirtk,ehereby reducing t
targeted federal funds rate to 1.00%. At SepterBBeP008, United simulation model indicated that a 100 basis piétreas
in rates would cause an approximate 2.7% decreasetiinterest revenue.

In order to manage its interest rate sensitivitpited uses ofbalance sheet contracts that are considered ded
financial instruments. Derivative financial instrams can be a cost and capital effective meansagfifing the repricin
characteristics of obalance sheet assets and liabilities. At Septe®bef008, United was a party to interest rate
contracts under which it pays a variable rate aweives a fixed rate, and interest rate floor @mt$rin which United pays
premium to a counterparty who agrees to pay Urtheddifference between a variable rate and a stdtesif the variable ra
falls below the strike ratt
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The following table presents the interest ratevdgdive contracts outstanding at September 30, 2008.

ble 11 — Derivative Financial Instruments

(dollars in thousands)

Rate Receive

Type/Maturity Notional Amount / Floor Rate Rate Paic  Fair Value 10
Fair Value Hedges:
LIBOR Swaps (Brokered CDs)
November 3, 200(1) $ 10,00( 5.00% 24% $ 13
March 24, 20042 60,00( 2.8t 3.9¢ —
March 30, 20043 20,00( 2.8t 3.9¢ —
August 27, 201(#) 50,00( 4.3C 3.71 (129
September 22, 2016) 50,00( 4.2t 3.1¢ (410
Total: 190,00( 3.71 3.6( (52€)
LIBOR Swaps (FHLB Advances)
January 5, 2000 25,00( 5.0¢€ 2.4¢ 88
March 2, 20047 25,00( 4.9C 2.4¢ 14¢
Total: 50,00( 4.9¢ 2.4¢ 237
Total Fair Value Hedge 240,00( 3.9¢ 3.37 (289)
Cash Flow Hedges:
Prime Swaps (Prime Loans)®)
November 4, 200 100,00( 8.32 5.0C 227
February 1, 200 25,00( 8.31 5.0C 224
May 4, 200¢ 30,00( 8.2¢ 5.0C 531
June 9, 201! 100,00( 5.82 5.0C 97t
June 11, 201 25,00( 8.2¢ 5.0C 1,25¢
June 13, 201 25,00( 6.72 5.0C 64¢€
December 12, 201 25,00( 6.8¢€ 5.0C 68¢
January 2, 201 100,00( 6.71 5.0C 2,18¢
March 12, 201: 50,00( 6.87 5.0C 1,43¢
March 27, 201: 50,00( 6.7€ 5.0C 1,252
March 27, 201: 50,00( 6.72 5.0C 1,14«
January 31, 201 50,00( 6.2¢€ 5.0C 84
May 6, 2012 50,00( 7.21 5.0C 1,921
July 22, 201: 100,00( 6.8¢ 5.0C 2,37¢
July 25, 201z 50,00( 6.9z 5.0C 1,31(
July 25, 201z 25,00( 6.91 5.0C 631
Total: 855,00( 7.0C 5.0C 16,88¢
Prime Floors (Prime Loans)®)
February 1, 200 25,00( 8.7t 257
May 1, 200¢ 25,00( 8.7 48¢
November 1, 200 75,00( 8.7t 2,98¢
February 4, 201 100,00( 8.7t 4,79¢
August 1, 201( 50,00( 8.7 3,001
August 4, 201( 50,00( 8.7t 3,00:
Total: 325,00( 14,53
Total Cash Flow Hedge 1,180,00! 31,42:
Total Derivative Contracts $ 1,420,001 $ 31,13

(1)
()
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

Rate Paid equals-Month LIBOR minus .272!
Rate Paid equals-Month LIBOR plus 1.07!
Rate Paid equals-Month LIBOR plus 1.243!
Rate Paid equals-Month LIBOR minus .65!
Rate Paid equals-Month LIBOR minus .57
Rate Paid equals-Month LIBOR minus .1:
Rate Paid equals-Month LIBOR minus .12¢




(8) Rate Paid equals Prime rate as of September 38,
(9) Floor contracts receive cash payments equal tlidberate less the prime ral
(10) Excludes accrued intere
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United’s derivative financial instruments are classifisce@aher cash flow or fair value hedges. The chandair value o
cash flow hedges is recognized in other comprekenscome. Fair value hedges recognize currentBaimings both the effe
of the change in the fair value of the derivatiirahcial instrument and the offsetting effect of tthange in fair value of t
hedged asset or liability associated with the paldr risk of that asset or liability being hedgéd September 30, 2008, Unit
had interest rate swap contracts with a total mafi@mount of $855 million that were designatedash flow hedges of prime-
based loans. United had interest rate floor cot#raith a total notional of $325 million and a remag unamortized premiu
balance of $3.8 million that were also designatedash flow hedges of printsed loans. United also had receive fixed
LIBOR swap contracts with a total notional of $240lion that were accounted for as fair value heslgé brokered depos
and fixed-rate FHLB advances.

United’s policy requires all derivative financial instrume be used only for asset/liability managemenough th
hedging of specific transactions or positions, aotl for trading or speculative purposes. Managerhetieves that the ri:
associated with using derivative financial instrumseto mitigate interest rate risk sensitivity igiimal and should not have ¢
material unintended effect on the financial comditor results of operations. In order to mitigadéeptial credit risk, from tirr
to time United may require the counterparties tovdéive contracts to pledge securities as coldter cover the net exposure.

Liquidity Management

The objective of liquidity management is to enstirat sufficient funding is available, at reasonabbst, to meet tt
ongoing operational cash needs and to take adwaatagevenue producing opportunities as they akigielle the desired lev
of liquidity will vary depending upon a variety @dctors, it is the primary goal of United to mainta sufficient level c
liquidity in all expected economic environmentsquidity is defined as the ability to convert assete cash or cash equivale
without significant loss and to raise additionahds by increasing liabilities. Liquidity managemeénvolves maintainin
United’s ability to meet the daily cash flow reaqrirents of the Banks’ customers, both depositordbanwwers.

Two key objectives of asset/liability managemerd 8y provide for adequate liquidity in order to méee needs |
customers and to maintain an optimal balance behirgerest-sensitive assets and intesestsitive liabilities to optimize r
interest revenue. Daily monitoring of the sourcesl aises of funds is necessary to maintain a positi@at meets bo
requirements.

The asset portion of the balance sheet providegiiy primarily through loan principal repaymeratsd the maturities a
sales of securities. Mortgage loans held for satlded $18 million at September 30, 2008, and bipidurn over every 45 da
as the closed loans are sold to investors in tbensiary market.

The liability section of the balance sheet providiegidity through interest-bearing and noninteslesaring depos
accounts. Federal funds purchased, Federal Resdrggterm borrowings, FHLB advances and securities sahde
agreements to repurchase are additional sourcdisjuddlity and represent Unitesl’incremental borrowing capacity. Th
sources of liquidity are generally short-term iriuna and are used as necessary to fund asset gaomittmeet other shoterm
liquidity needs.

United had sufficient qualifying collateral to iease FHLB advances by $813 million at SeptembefB08. Unitedé
internal policy limits brokered deposits to 25%atfal nonbrokered deposits. At September 30, 2008, Unitelitha capacity
increase brokered deposits by $741 million and stinain within this limit. Also, United had suffent qualifying asse
pledged to the Federal Reserve under the Term dwdiacility, Term Investment Option and Discountndbw to increas
short-term borrowings by $414 million.

As disclosed in United’ consolidated statement of cash flows, net casviged by operating activities was $118.4 mil
for the nine months ended September 30, 2008. Hjerroontributors in this category were ncesh expenses for provision
loan losses of $99.0 million, decreases in mortdages held for sale of $10.2 million, plus noncasbenses for depreciati
amortization and accretion of $11.1 million, anchcash writedowns and losses on other real estagl@# million. Thes
items were offset by a net loss of $16.7 millioret Mash used by investing activities of $53.0 willconsisted primarily of a r
increase in loans totaling $58.7 million, purchaségpremises and equipment of $9.0 million, and %8million used t
purchase investment securities, partially offsetpbgceeds from sales of securities of $85.0 milliovaturities and calls
investment securities of $396.7 million, and saésther real estate of $52.0 million. Net cashdubg financing activities «
$118.3 million consisted primarily of a net deceead $518.8 million in federal funds purchased,urehase agreements, i
other shorterm borrowings, a net decrease in FHLB advance&28#.0 million and cash dividends paid on commtolsof
$12.7 million, offset by a net increase in deposits$613.4 million and proceeds from the issuantsubordinated debt
$30.0 million. In the opinion of management, thguidity position at September 30, 2008 is suffitienmeet its expected ci
flow requirements.
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Capital Resources and Dividends

Shareholdersequity at September 30, 2008 was $816.9 milliomearease of $15.0 million from December 31, 2
Accumulated other comprehensive income is not geduin the calculation of regulatory capital adexyuatios. Excluding tt
change in the accumulated other comprehensive iacehareholdergquity decreased $17.5 million from December 307
Cash dividends of $8.5 million, or $.18 per shawvere declared on common stock during the first mimanths of 2008,
decrease of 33% from the amount declared in theegaeniod in 2007. This was due to United declaang for 130 stoc
dividend during the third quarter 2008 in lieu o€ash dividend. Although, United retains a portidrits earnings in order
provide a cost effective source of capital for amméd growth and expansion, United recognizes thah dividends are
important component of shareholder value, and thergintends to provide for cash dividends whemiegs , capital leve
and other factors permit.

United’s Board of Directors has authorized the repase of United outstanding common stock for general corpi
purposes. At September 30, 2008, 1,000,000 shareaimed available to be repurchased under the rtu8,600,000 sha
authorization through December 31, 2008. Duringftret nine months of 2008, optionees deliveredd8,8hares to exerc
stock options.

United’s common stock trades on the Nasdaq Gloledécd Market under the symbol “UCBIBelow is a quarter!
schedule of high, low and closing stock prices anerage daily volume for 2008 and 2007.

Table 12 — Stock Price Information

2008 2007
Avg Daily Avg Daily
High Low Close Volume High Low Close Volume
First quartel $20.8( $13.3¢ $16.9¢ 441 ,65¢ $34.9¢ $30.81 $32.7¢ 232,26¢
Second quarte 18.51] 8.51 8.5¢ 464,56t 33.0% 25.8( 25.8¢ 266,68:
Third quartel 19.0¢ 7.64 13.2¢ 359,97: 27.5( 22.1¢ 24.5; 346,59¢
Fourth quarte 25.7: 15.1¢ 15.8( 421,91(

The following table presents the quarterly cashdeéinds declared in 2008 and 2007 and the respegtiyeut ratios as
percentage of basic operating earnings per shdriehvexcludes special fraud related provisionsldan losses in the secc
and fourth quarters of 2007.

Table 13 — Dividend Payout Information

2008 2007
Dividend Payout % Dividend Payout %
First quartel $ .09 $ .08 20
Second quarte .09 .0¢ 19
Third quartel — .09 19
Fourth quarte .0¢ 69"

*  Based on basic operating earnings per sharehndicludes the effect of the $15 million specialifi+elated provision fc
loan losses in the second quarter of 2007 and $®min the fourth quarter of 2007. Including tepecial provisions, ti
dividend payout ratio was 35% and 100%, respegtjfel the second and fourth quarters of 2(

** |n the third quarter of 2008, United replaced ggular cash dividend with a stock dividend of ohars for every 12
shares owned, which had a value equal to approglyn&t09 per shart

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 8ysies issued guidelines for the implementationisi-based capit
requirements by U.S. banks and bank holding congsaiiihese risbased capital guidelines take into consideratisk flactors
as defined by regulators, associated with variatsgories of assets, both on andlzdfance sheet. Under the guidelines, ce
strength is measured in two tiers that are usemijunction with riskadjusted assets to determine the risk based cagpitas
The guidelines require an 8% total risk-based ahapdtio, of which 4% must be Tier | capital. Todmnsidered weltapitalize
under the guidelines, a 10% total risk-based chyti is required, of which 6% must be Tier | itap

A minimum leverage ratio is required in additiontibe riskbased capital standards and is defined as Tigpitataividec
by average assets adjusted for goodwill and depasitd intangibles. Although a minimum leveragerati3% is required f
the highestated bank holding companies which are not undergagignificant expansion programs, the FederaeResBoar
requires a bank holding company to maintain a kyerratio greater than 3% if it is experiencinganticipating significar
growth or is operating with less than wadllrersified risks in the opinion of the Federal Be® Board. The Federal Rese
Board uses the leverage and -based capital ratios to assess capital adequargnts and bank holding compani
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The following table shows Unitesl’capital ratios, as calculated under regulatorgeajimes, at September 30, 2008
2007.

Table 14 — Capital Ratios

(dollars in thousands)

2008 2007

Actual Regulatory Actual Regulatory

Amount Minimum Amount Minimum
Tier | Leverage
Amount $ 523,91 $ 234,92 $ 551,26! $ 232,94.
Ratio 6.6%% 3.0(% 7.1(% 3.0(%
Tier | Risk-Based:
Amount $ 523,91 $ 242,08 $ 551,26! $ 251,33
Ratio 8.6€% 4.0(% 8.71% 4.0(%
Total Risl-Based:
Amount $ 689,71( $ 484,16 $ 696,51: $ 502,67
Ratio 11.4(% 8.0(% 11.08% 8.0(%

United’s Tier | capital excludes other compreheasivcome, and consists of stockholdezquity and qualifying capit
securities, less goodwill and depadsésed intangibles. Tier Il capital components idelsupplemental capital items such
qualifying allowance for loan losses and qualifysdordinated debt. Tier | capital plus Tier Il tabcomponents is referred
as Total Risk-Based capital.

The capital ratios of United and the Banks curgeettceed the minimum ratios as defined by federgllators. Unite
monitors these ratios to ensure that United andBtrks remain above regulatory minimum guidelines.

Effect of Inflation and Changing Prices

A bank’s asset and liability structure is substantialljedent from that of an industrial firm in that prarily all assets at
liabilities of a bank are monetary in nature witdatively little investment in fixed assets or int@ries. Inflation has ¢
important effect on the growth of total assets tiredresulting need to increase equity capital giidvi than normal rates in or
to maintain an appropriate equity to assets ratio.

United’s management believes the effect of inflatim financial results depends on Unitedbility to react to changes
interest rates, and by such reaction, reduce thationary effect on performance. United has are#ability manageme
program to manage interest rate sensitivity. Initaad periodic reviews of banking services anddarcts are conducted
adjust pricing in view of current and expected sost

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure Abait Market Risk

There have been no material changes in Urstegliantitative and qualitative disclosures aboutrketarisk as ¢
September 30, 2008 from that presented in the AriReport on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 2007. The int
rate sensitivity position at September 30, 2008dkided in management’s discussion and analysizage 25 of this report.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

United’s management, including the Chief Executive Offied Chief Financial Officer, supervised and piéted in a
evaluation of the compang/’disclosure controls and procedures as of SepteBh008. Based on, and as of the date of
evaluation, Unitedd Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offichave concluded that the disclosure controls
procedures were effective in accumulating and comoating information to management, including thkief Executivi
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropri#deallow timely decisions regarding required discires of that informatic
under the Securities and Exchange Commissiaules and forms and that the disclosure contmodsprocedures are designe
ensure that the information required to be disaasereports that are filed or submitted by Unitedler the Act is recorde
processed, summarized and reported within the gereds specified in the Securities and Exchanger@issions rules an
forms.

There were no significant changes in the intermailtrols or in other factors that could significgndffect these contrc
subsequent to the date of their evaluation.
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Part Il. Other Information
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of operations, United arel Banks are defendants in various legal proceedinghe opinion ¢
management, there is no pending or threatened guowein which an adverse decision could resuét material adverse char
in the consolidated financial condition or reswt®perations of United.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes from the aisfofs previously disclosed in United’s FormHK.@er the year ende
December 31, 2007, but United did add the followiisg factor:

Our ability to raise capital could be limited and ould affect our liquidity and could be dilutive to existing shareholders.

Current conditions in the capital markets are gshahtraditional sources of capital may not be latdé to us on reasona
terms if we needed to raise capital. In such dhsge is no guarantee that we will be able to berftnds or successfully rai
additional capital at all or on terms that are fabe or otherwise not dilutive to existing shaielecs.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds — None
Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities — None

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securityfolders — None

Item 5. Other Information — None

Item 6. Exhibits

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of United ComntyrBanks, Inc., (incorporated herein by refereta
Exhibit 3.1 to United Community Banks, Inc.'s Qualy Report on Form 1@ for the quarter end
June 30, 2001, File No-21656, filed with the Commission on August 14, 20

3.2 Amendment to the Restated Articles of Incorporatbtunited Community Banks, Inc. (incorporated e
by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to United Community Bsninc.’s Registration Statement on Fornd, S-ile
No. 33:-118893, filed with the Commission on September0®43.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of United CommunitykBaimc., dated September 12, 1997 (incorpo
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to United ComituBanks, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form K)-for the
year ended December 31, 1997, File N-21656, filed with the Commission on March 27, 19!

41 See Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 for provisions of Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended
Amended and Restated Bylaws, which define the sighthe Shareholder

10.1 Subordinated Term Loan Agreement, dated as of AWwfs2008 among United Community Bank
borrower, the lenders from time to time party thereand SunTrust Bank, as administrative a
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@1United Community Banks, Ins.’Current Report ¢
Form &K dated August 29, 2008, File Nc-21656, filed with the Commission on August 29, 20!

31.1 Certification by Jimmy C. Tallent, President ande@liExecutive Officer of United Community Bankscli
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification by Rex S. Schuette, Executive Viceeddent and Chief Financial Officer of Uni
Community Banks, Inc., as adopted pursuant to &&02 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002
32 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@ndsy
Act of 2002,
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causedReport to b
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereuualy authorized.

UNITED COMMUNITY BANKS, INC.

/s/ Jimmy C. Tallent

Jimmy C. Tallent

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

/9 Rex S. Schuette

Rex S. Schuettt

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

/9 Alan H. Kumler

Alan H. Kumler

Senior Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: November 7, 20C
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32

Restated Articles of Incorporation of United ComntyrBanks, Inc., (incorporated herein by referemna
Exhibit 3.1 to United Community Banks, Inc.’s Qualy Report on Form 1@ for the quarter ended June
2001, File No. -21656, filed with the Commission on August 14, 20!

Amendment to the Restated Articles of Incorporatétunited Community Banks, Inc. (incorporated lie
by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to United Community Bsninc.’s Registration Statement on Form,S-ile
No. 333118893, filed with the Commission on September0®43.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of United CommunitykBainc., dated September 12, 1997 (incorpo
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to United ComituBanks, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form XK)-for the
year ended December 31, 1997, File N-21656, filed with the Commission on March 27, 19!

See Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 for provisions of Bestated Articles of Incorporation, as amended
Amended and Restated Bylaws, which define the sighthe Shareholder

Subordinated Term Loan Agreement, dated as of Aw®Ms2008 among United Community Bank
borrower, the lenders from time to time party thereand SunTrust Bank, as administrative a
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@1United Community Banks, Ine.’Current Report ¢
Form ¢-K dated August 29, 2008, File Nc-21656, filed with the Commission on August 29, 20

Certification by Jimmy C. Tallent, President andeZtxecutive Officer of United Community Banksgcly
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification by Rex S. Schuette, Executive Vicedttent and Chief Financial Officer of United Conmity
Banks, Inc., as adopted pursuant to Section 3@2eoBarban«-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@ndsy
Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 31.1

[, Jimmy C. Tallent, President and Chief Executdfficer of United Community Banks, Inc. (the “regant”), certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormrQ0f the registrant;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmitate a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligthteo€ircumstances under which such statements made, not misleadit
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in ¢
material respects the financial condition, reswitsoperations and cash flows of the registrant faisand for, the perioc
presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contrate
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas define
in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(f) and 15d — 15(f))the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedoresaused such disclosure controls and procedorbg designe
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédion relating to the registrant, including itmesolidated subsidiari
is made known to us by others within those entifi@sticularly during the period in which this repis being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenadsurance regarding the reliability of finanai@porting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted aticguprinciples;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgamlisclosure controls and procedures and presentéhis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by th
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that haterraly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrand’
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal cbrawe!
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardioéctors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagees in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincia
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvemanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in th
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

By: /¢ Jimmy C. Tallent
Jimmy C. Tallent
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: November 7, 20C



Exhibit 31.2

I, Rex S. Schuette, Executive Vice President an@&fCFinancial Officer of United Community Banks,cln(the “registrant},
certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormrQ0f the registrant;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmitate a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteo€ircumstances under which such statements mede, not misleadi
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in ¢
material respects the financial condition, reswitsoperations and cash flows of the registrant faisand for, the perioc
presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible festablishing and maintaining disclosure contratg
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas define
in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 15(f) and 15d — 15(f))the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedoresaused such disclosure controls and procedorbg designe
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated subsidiari
is made known to us by others within those entifi@sticularly during the period in which this repis being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenadsurance regarding the reliability of finanai@porting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted aticguprinciples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgamlisclosure controls and procedures and presentéhis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by th
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reporting thatoed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that haterraly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrand’
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal cbrawe!
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditor&lahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardioéctors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operatimininternal control over financial reporti
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioaincia
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvemanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in th
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

By: /9 Rex S. Schuette
Rex S. Schuettt
Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

Date: November 7, 20C



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Unitedrn@munity Banks, Inc. (“United”) on Form 1Q-for the period endir
September 30, 2008 filed with the Securities andhiarge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repdrtdjmmy C. Tallen
President and Chief Executive Officer of Unitedd &nRex S. Schuette, Executive Vice President@nief Financial Officer c
United, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13&0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@rkey Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeok 1934; ant

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand result ¢
operations of Unitec

By: /¢ Jimmy C. Tallent
Jimmy C. Tallent
President and Chief Executive Offic

By: /9 Rex S. Schuette
Rex S. Schuettt
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 7, 20C



